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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHMES

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Kingdom”
or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”).

As the world’s largest manufacturer of linen yarn, Kingdom produced
18,523 tonnes of linen yarn during the Year, which accounted for
more than 10% of the global supply.

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
11,472 tonnes (2017: 11,734 tonnes), roughly at a comparative level
as last year. Kingdom accounted for approximately 44.4% of the total
pure linen yarn export from China in 2018 (2017: 45.0%), which
maintained the Group’s leading position as the largest pure linen yarn
exporter in China for 16 consecutive years.

Kingdom is a key leader and promoter of organic and sustainable
linen, and is a world’s leading manufacturer of organic linen yarn and
organic linen fibers, and established a raw material production base
in Yili, Xinjiang, the PRC mainly for the production of organic flax.
There were 620 tonnes of organic linen yarn produced in 2018.

The trend of environment-friendliness and the use of natural fibers
has been set. Linen yarn, as one of the most environmentally friendly
fibers, will surely benefit from this trend. The global demand of linen
yarn has rebounded, coupled with the rapid growth of the Chinese
flax consumer market and the constrained capacity expansion in
2017, has driven the average selling price of linen yarn to a historical
level during the Year. Total turnover of the Group increased by 21.6%
despite similar quantity of linen yarn sold compared to the year 2017.
Our top five markets are China, India, Italy, Korea and Turkey.

Having said that, the geo-political environment is to be alerted and
protectionism is expected to be on the rise. The Indian government
had initiated an anti-dumping investigation of linen yarn originating
in or exported from China during the Year and recommended to
impose definitive anti-dumping duty for five years ranging from
USDO.5 to USD4.83 per kilogram of “flax yarn” of below 70 Lea
Count (or below 42 Nm) originating in or exported from China. Such
duty will be partially reflected in the selling price to our customers
in India. On the other end, the China-US trade tension will continue
to evolve in the foreseeable future. However, given that most of the
Group's direct customers or end consumer brands are not US based,
any impact of China-US trade war would be indirect and limited.
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Technological innovation of Kingdom has always been at the forefront
of the industry. In 2018, the Group applied for 14 patents, including
8 invention patents with 7 patents granted. These achievements will
gradually become Kingdom’s core competitiveness.

Kingdom also started manufacturing industrial hemp yarn through
its joint venture in Heilongjiang Province which was established in
2016, in which the Group has a 72.72% equity interest. The joint
venture company has built a new industrial hemp and linen yarn
factory with annual production capacity of 4,000 tonnes of yarn
in Heilongjiang Province. It is also the Group’s maiden attempt to
explore the industrial hemp yarn market. The Heilongjiang factory
is equipped with advanced technology equipment, which is leading
in the global industrial hemp industry and leading in the production
industry. The production of industrial hemp yarn accounts for
approximately 60% of the overall production in China in 2018.

The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site area
of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park, Adama,
Ethiopia. The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on land
lease, labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions of
quota and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured in
Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the world. The Company
believes this strategic investment in Ethiopia will have significant
long-term benefits to the Group. The Ethiopia production facility is
expected to commence trial production in late 2019/early 2020.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
remains its confidence in the future of the Group’s operation and
profitability. To show the Group’s appreciation to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) for their trust and support while
reserving resources for the Group’s immediate and future expansion,
the Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
Year of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share of the Company (“Share”)
(2017: HK2.0 cents per Share).

On behalf of the Board, |1 would like to thank the entire staff for
their devotion and contributions in the past year. | would also like
to express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support for the Group.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 22 March 2019
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Five Year Financial Summary

EEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

REVENUE A
Cost of sales HERA
Gross profit £
Other income and gains Hiv s R iss
Selling and distribution costs HERD A
Administrative expenses THRX
Other expenses Hihfx
Finance costs MBmA
Share of profit and loss of an associate ~ FEfE — Bt & 2 A& FI 2
ER
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLARR, (F])
Income tax (expense)/Credit it (Fx) /e
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiA
Attributable to: FEAh -
Owners of the parent SYNTETYSUN
Non-controlling interests FEPERI MR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BERAE
Total liabilities BEAH
Non-controlling interests FEEERIE R
Net assets BEFE

2018 Annual Report — & — \FE &

AEES IR EMBEENEEUREERAE
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E —Z—+tF ZEF-RF ZZ-1Ff —T-QEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
1,245,643 1,023,962 856,243 1,025,403 914,279
(987,762) (907,694) (704,365) (761,358) (669,278)
257,881 116,268 151,878 264,045 245,001
24,308 25,575 54,358 12,274 14,309
(48,687) (39,361) (37,951) (38,687) (37,870)
(73,020) (49,670) (58,968) (55,628) (48,168)
(6,818) (38,200) (643) (4,432) (12,931)
(21,520) (17,712) (16,059) (13,236) (10,751)

_ - - (28) 36

132,144 (3,100 92,615 164,308 149,626
(28,957) 3,722 (22,586) (43,939 (39,149)
103,187 622 70,029 120,369 110,477
102,006 (3,132) 66,344 120,369 110,477
1,181 3,754 3,685 - -

EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=1+-8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-\f —Z—+f ZZE-Rf —Z-hFf —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
2,127,748 1,962,416 1,930,435 1,599,847 1,490,055
(974,239) (912,220) (843,999) (555,869) (528,393)
(40,620) (32,439 (18,685) - -
1,112,889 1,017,757 1,067,751 1,043,978 961,662



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”), the GDP growth rate
in China for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”) was
6.6%. The overall textile industry in China recorded a growth of
8.1% in export during the Year. The cotton price was relatively stable
throughout 2018 which was good for the recovery of the market
demand of linen yarn.

According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the total volume of pure linen yarn exports of China
in 2018 dropped by approximately 1.0% year-on-year, while the
total volume of all textile with linen (including pure linen and linen
mixed with other fabrics) of China in 2018, on the other hand, grew
by approximately 0.1% year-on-year. In the trough of the economic
cycle, the low level of cotton yarn price may lead to a reduction
in demand for pure linen yarn from fashion brands and garment
manufacturers, which favours cotton or cotton/linen blended yarn and
enables products made of these materials to be more appealing to
relatively cost conscious consumers. The market has proven that pure
linen yarn is a preferred choice over linen mixed yarn once the price
is not the only concern. For years, the Group has been focusing on
upholding excellent quality and offering tailored customer services.
As such, the Group has always been a key partner of major overseas
linen fabric and garment manufacturers.

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
11,472 tonnes (2017: 11,734 tonnes). The Group accounted for
approximately 44.4% of the total pure linen yarn export from China
in 2018 (2017: 45.0%), signifying the Group’s continuous leading
position as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in China for 16
consecutive years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBERWE DN

As a result of the recovery of the global market demand of pure
linen yarn since the end of 2017 and the Group's strategic
upward price adjustments during the Year, revenue of the Group
for the Year increased by approximately 21.6% year-on-year to
RMB1,245,643,000 (2017: RMB1,023,962,000). Gross profit surged
by approximately 121.8% year-on-year to RMB257,881,000 (2017:
RMB116,268,000) and overall gross margin rebounded to 20.7% in
2018 (2017: 11.4%), as a result of the price adjustments in 2018.
Profit for the year was RMB103,187,000, representing a remarkable
growth as compared from RMB622,000 in 2017. Basic earnings per
Share amounted to RMB0.17 (2017: loss per Share of RMBO0.01).
To reciprocate the Shareholders for their continuous support for the
Group while reserving resources for further expansions, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per
Share for the Year (2017: HK2.0 cents per Share).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a
sales network covering over 20 countries and regions around the
world. In order to timely seize market opportunity, keep abreast
of market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services,
the Group has established presence in major overseas linen textile
and consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary
in ltaly and agents in Turkey, Portugal, Lithuania, India and Korea.
The Group's subsidiary in Italy keeps its own inventories so that it
can serve the immediate needs and tighten its co-operations with
high-end customers in Europe. During the Year, revenue derived
from overseas sales amounted to RMB774,953,000, representing
approximately 62.2% of the Group’s total revenue. In particular,
revenue from European Union countries amounted to approximately
RMB307,854,000, representing approximately 24.7% of the Group’s
total revenue, while revenue from non-European Union countries
amounted to approximately RMB467,099,000, representing
approximately 37.5% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
Year, despite the Department of Commerce, Government of India
has initiated anti-dumping investigation of linen yarn originating
in or exported from China, India continued to overtake lItaly since
2017 as the largest export market of the Group and accounted for
approximately 28.9% of the Group’s total export revenue, followed
by, in descending order, Italy, Korea, Turkey, Portugal and Lithuania.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestic sales in China increased by approximately 21.6% during
the Year to RMB470,690,000, representing approximately 37.8% of
the Group's total revenue. In light of the increasing income level,
there have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of
the general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from
pure practicality to quality and the ability to reflect their personal
taste. Linen textiles are not only anti-bacterial and comfortable,
but also highly environment-friendly in their production process.
Therefore, linen textiles perfectly suit the taste of new-generation
consumers who may have a stronger preference over environment-
friendly and sustainable products. Many leading domestic and
overseas trend-setting brands and fast-moving fashion brands have
now embarked on their own linen selections. For example, a famous
Japanese brand has not only launched a linen garment line, but also
introduced a tracking system for the use of its raw materials to allow
its product quality and environment-friendliness to be monitored by
itself together with its consumers.

Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Markets

FY2018
“E-NFHRFE

ARETFT %

China i 470,690 37.8%

European Union (g2 307,854 24.7%

Non-European Union JEER R 467,099 37.5%

Total Revenue BRA 1,245,643 100.0%

EEENWRE DN

FENBREENAFEREREL21.6%EARE
470,690,0007T ' fh AREE AU A LI37.8% ° BEE F
B2 K RIMAKE EF S HEBRAEE TIRAMN
EE HBEENBEERIEAENERESES
ALRETELEER EEBEEAMEBESNER
figh e TENREGE HAEEBRBEHIEFIRR -
Et s et oFaFI —REBEHRERM
AHBRRERMERENZL - B AT BRI
% KAVRAT ShEE - PRIRES i S EE 5 B 59 ¥h 20 i AR
HiERH - Flan - —EZE R B RRENERRE T 2
RIIBRED - B INSI AT RAEHB A FI - (5 E AT
HMBE —REBRERMEMRRENR

BRI TEHEEDT
Year-on- Year-on-
year change  year change
FY2017 in revenue in revenue
PN WA
“E-tEHBEE RESD RE28
AREFTT % ARETR %
387,135 37.8% 83,555 21.6%
251,705 24.6% 56,149 22.3%
385,122 37.6% 81,977 21.3%
1,023,962 100.0% 221,681 21.6%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBERWE DN

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the Year, prices of fibre flax, the major raw material of linen
yarn, maintained a steady growth. The Group mainly sources its fibre
flax from well-established origins such as France, Belgium and the
Netherlands. Being one of the largest buyers in these regions, the
Group enjoys strong bargaining power when dealing with suppliers.
Furthermore, the Group has formulated systematic procurement
strategies under which the Group will procure raw materials
according to the level of fibre flax harvest, the Group's inventory level
and the market prices of fibre flax so as to stabilise its raw material
costs and overall market demand and supply as well as reducing the
price fluctuations of raw materials. Apart from sourcing raw materials
abroad, the Group has established a raw material production base
in Yili, Xinjiang, the PRC mainly for the production of organic flax.
This production base currently has an annual production capacity of
approximately 400 tonnes. Going forward, the Group will continue
to look for other suitable flax cultivation bases in other regions with
the aim to further stabilise the price fluctuations and supply of raw
materials.

Production Bases and Productivity

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had four production bases in
China. The one in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC has an
annual production capacity of 6,000 tonnes. Another two production
bases are located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC,
among which the first Haiyan plant has an annual production
capacity of 7,000 tonnes and the second Haiyan plant has an annual
production capacity of 5,000 tonnes. The Group has established
its fourth facility in Heilongjiang Province in China with an annual
capacity of 4,000 tonnes for flax and industrial hemp yarn. Currently,
the designed annual linen and industrial hemp yarn production
capacity of the Group amounts to 22,000 tonnes based on
standardized 24Nm specification. The utilization rate of each of the
production bases was close to 100% during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s production bases are continuously under improvement.
New production bases are equipped with the latest management
systems, technologies and equipment, a combination of which
has resulted in a smooth operation and reduced unnecessary
procedures and wastage of raw materials, which has improved our
overall production efficiency. These systems have not only made the
production processes more environment-friendly, but also reduced
the production costs of the Group and have laid a solid foundation of
profit growth for the Group in the long run. For further details of the
measures taken by the Group in relation to environmental protection,
please refer to the separate Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group for the Year, which is expected to be despatched
together with the annual report of the Company for the Year before
the end of April 2019.

The Group owns a 72.72% equity interest in the flax and industrial
hemp yarn manufacturing facility in Heilongjiang and it is the
Group’s maiden attempt to explore the industrial hemp yarn market,
as the Company believes industrial hemp yarn market will grow
rapidly in the next few years due to the national policy in China to
promote the planting of industrial hemp in the Heilongjiang region
and the use of the industrial hemp textile products.
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In addition, the Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for
new production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a
site area of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park,
Adama, Ethiopia. The phase one development of this land parcel will
further boost the annual production capacity of the Group by 5,000
tonnes. The Board believes that the federal government of Ethiopia
is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn Factories project to be
constructed on this land parcel into one of the model projects of
the “Belt & Road” initiative in Ethiopia. The Chinese government
also encouraged manufacturers to expand overseas by facilitating
political risk insurance coverage by state-owned insurance company.
The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on land lease,
labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions of quota
and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured in Ethiopia
to a vast number of countries in the world. Despite there have been
on and off ethno-political conflicts since October 2016 leading to
the resignation of the Prime Minister of Ethiopia in February 2018,
the Government of Ethiopia had reaffirmed their commitment in
maintaining the industrialization agenda that has already been
initiated. The Board believes the strategic investment in Ethiopia will
have significant long-term benefit to the Group. On 25 January 2018,
the Group entered into a master agreement with The IT Electronics
Eleventh Design & Research Institute Scientific and Technological
Engineering Corporation Limited* ({5 BEXEF 5 + — R 5k
RHx TR M BRAE) (“EDRI”) for the engineering, procurement
and construction/turnkey contract for the Ethiopia project at an
aggregate contract price of RMB208,670,000. The construction of the
factory is close to completion and machinery and equipment will be
installed in 2019 and the Ethiopia production facility is expected to
commence trial production in late 2019/early 2020.

* For identification purpose only
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Existing and planned production bases
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Country

China
H
China
i
China
i
China
H
Ethiopia

REMIL S
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RERCHRELEEEM
Annual
capacity
(Tonnes) Utilisation/Status
FER
() FAR/RR
7,000 Close to 100%
BiT100%
6,000 Close to 100%
Bi100%
5,000 Close to 100%
Bi100%
4,000 Close to 100%
BiT100%
5,000 Expects trial production in
late 2019/early 2020
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Patents, Awards and Recognition

The Group has continued to invest in technology and innovation. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group owned 64 registered patents and
there were another 28 patents applications pending formal approval
by relevant authorities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue increased by approximately 21.6%
to approximately RMB1,245,643,000 (2017: RMB1,023,962,000).
The increase of revenue was mainly attributable to the upward
price adjustments of pure linen yarn sold during the Year. As a result
of global market impact and the Group’s strategic upward price
adjustments, revenue for all markets (including domestic market,
European countries and non-European countries) recorded similar
growth during the Year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group’s gross profit surged to RMB257,881,000,
representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 121.8% (2017:
RMB116,268,000). Gross profit margin for the Year rebounded to
20.7% (2017: 11.4%) as a result of recovery of the market demand of
linen yarn and the upward selling price adjustments of the linen yarn
during the Year.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, other income and gains of RMB24,308,000 (2017:
RMB25,575,000) were mainly represented by the net exchange gain
of RMB19,235,000 (2017: net exchange loss of RMB28,894,000),
various government grants which amounted to RMB2,501,000 (2017:
RMB24,135,000) and interest income of RMB1,043,000 (2017:
RMB899,000).
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB48,687,000 (2017: RMB39,361,000), which
accounted for approximately 3.9% (2017: 3.8%) of the Group's
revenue. The slight increase in the selling and distribution expenses as
a percentage of revenue in the Year was mainly due to a cumulative
adjustment of the commission provision being made in 2017 and
resulting in a lower sales agent commission expense recorded in last
year.

Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB73,020,000 (2017: RMB49,670,000),
representing an increase of approximately 47.0% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase of administrative
expenses was mainly due to additional research and development
costs of RMB6,201,000, consulting fee of RMB2,410,000, personnel
costs of RMB3,091,000, depreciation charge of RMB2,375,000 and
amortization charges of RMB4,007,000.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for the Year mainly represent a
loss on derivative financial instruments of RMB3,438,000 (2017:
RMB?7,002,000). The decrease in other expenses was mainly due to
there being a net exchange loss of RMB28,894,000 in last year but
a net exchange gain for the Year and reported in Other Income and
Gains above.

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB21,520,000 (2017: RMB17,712,000), representing an increase of
approximately 21.5%. The increase in finance costs was mainly due
to fewer interest expenses were capitalised due to the completion of
the Heilongjiang factory which commenced full operation during the
Year.
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Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB28,957,000
(2017: income tax credit of approximately RMB3,722,000). The
income tax credit in last year was mainly due to the reversal of
provision of dividend withholding tax provided in 2013. It was
accrued at 10% but actual charged by tax authorities was 5%.
According to PRC tax laws, the time limit of recovery of tax by tax
authorities is three years. The effective tax rate for the year ended 31
December 2018 was 21.9%.

Profit for the Year

As a result, the Group recorded a net profit for the Year
of approximately RMB103,187,000 (2017: approximately
RMB622,000), representing a surge of approximately 165 times as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2017.

Minority Interests

The minority interests amounted to RMB1,181,000 which represent
the share of the net profit of the 27.28% of equity interests of
Heilongjiang Jinda Flax and Hemp Co., Ltd.* (RIS EMES
fRA@]), attributable to the minority shareholders during the Year
(2017: RMB3,754,000).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

During the Year, the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
the parent of approximately RMB102,006,000, as compared to a loss
attributable to owners of the parents of RMB3,132,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s intangible assets were mainly
certified emission rights in 2012 for a term of 20 years, which
amounted to RMB5,248,000 (2017: RMB5,834,000). Intangible assets
are subject to amortisation based on their useful lives. For the Year,
the amortisation of intangible assets was approximately RMB586,000
(2017: RMB536,000).
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Inventories

As at 31 December 2018, inventories of the Group increased by
approximately 4.9% to RMB557,087,000 (2017: RMB531,212,000),
the average inventory turnover days decreased from 209 days as at
31 December 2017 to 201 days as at 31 December 2018. The lower
number of inventory turnover days was mainly attributable to the
increase of sales of linen yarn during the Year and the decrease in
finished goods inventory balance as a result of global market impact
and the Group’s strategic price adjustment.

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2018, trade and notes receivables of the Group
decreased by approximately 4.9% to RMB295,115,000 (2017:
RMB310,215,000), the average accounts receivable turnover days
decreased from 108 days as at 31 December 2017 to 89 days as at 31
December 2018.

Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2018, trade and notes payables of the
Group increased by approximately 29.5% to approximately
RMB245,675,000 (2017: RMB189,783,000). There were additional
purchases of raw materials at the end of the Year to ensure stable
supply. The average accounts payable turnover days increased to 80
days during the Year (2017: 64 days).

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans amounted to approximately RMB559,384,000 (2017:
RMB595,161,000), representing a decrease of approximately 6.0%.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has net current assets of
approximately RMB314,058,000 (2017: RMB307,836,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources and
bank loans during the Year. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB241,826,000 (2017:
RMB173,824,000).

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately 134.5% (2017: 137.2%). Total equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 was approximately RMB1,153,509,000 (2017:
RMB1,050,196,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank loans repayable
within 12 months from the statement of financial position date
of approximately RMB508,984,000 (2017: RMB519,561,000)
and long-term loans of approximately RMB50,400,000 (2017:
RMB75,600,000). Together these loans represented a gross debt
gearing (i.e. total borrowings/total equity) of approximately 48.5%
(2017: 56.7%).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB146,431,000 (2017:
RMB36,283,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 25 January 2018, the Group entered into a master agreement with
EDRI, pursuant to which EDRI agreed to provide the procurement
service and the management service to the Group for the
development of the linen yarn factory project in Ethiopia (“Ethiopia
Project”) at an aggregate contract price of RMB208,670,000.

On 27 September 2018, the Group entered into the equipment
purchase agreement with Zhejiang Golden Eagle Co., Ltd.* (#T/TL&
&R BBRAF]) to revise certain terms of the original agreement
entered on 11 February 2015, pursuant to which the parties agreed to
amend the details and specifications of the equipment for the Ethiopia
Project to be purchased by the Group and as a result of which, the
consideration amended to RMB49,048,000.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

* For identification purpose only
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB267,056,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of RMB80,992,000
(2017: RMB112,775,000), RMB43,806,000 (2017: RMB27,421,000)
and Nil (2017: RMB40,000,000), respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB50,400,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group with carrying amounts of
RMB74,962,000 (2017: RMB78,961,000) and RMB15,102,000
(2017: RMB15,422,000), respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
United States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange
rate changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and
managed appropriately. Currently, the Company also has certain
foreign currency forward contracts and cross-currencies swap
contracts entered into by utilising its credit line, and derivative
financial instruments of approximately RMB3,438,000 which were
recognised by the Group as a current liability as at 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB7,002,000).
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 3,048 employees
(2017: 2,706 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
increased by approximately 9.4% to RMB183,823,000 (2017:
RMB167,984,000). The additional headcount was mainly attributable
to the workforce recruited for the new Heilongjiang factory during the
Year.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions (retirement insurance and
unemployment insurance) to a social security scheme in China. The
remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is formulated by
the Board with reference to the employee’s respective qualification,
experience, responsibilities and contributions to the Group, as well as
the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a similar position. The
remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board and the
remuneration committee of the Company with the mandate given by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Group also provides both internal and external
training programmes for its employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted share option schemes and a share award
plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, and other
employees of the Group who have contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and the sale of the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales
are invoiced in United States Dollars, except sales by our subsidiary
in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in China are
invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (fiber flax) are imported from
Europe. The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include
the demand for linen yarn, protectionism of certain countries and
possible punitive tariffs of products made in China, stable supplies
of raw materials, continuous decline in cotton price, depreciation of
United States Dollars against Renminbi, and the execution risk of the
new expansion project in Ethiopia.

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

The demand of linen yarn has rebounded since the end of 2017
and remained robust throughout the Year. Taking into account that
no massive production capacity had launched in the linen yarn
market since 2016, while some of the smaller and less efficient
competitors exited the market, the average selling price of linen yarn
reached its historical high. The trend of environment-friendliness
and the use of natural fibers has been set. Linen yarn, as one of the
most environmentally-friendly fibers, will surely benefit from this
trend. In addition, China has become one of the largest consumer
markets for linen textile products. The Company is confident in the
sustainable demand for linen yarn in the coming years, as the Chinese
government encourages domestic consumption for its GDP growth
and transformation of its economy to lessen the reliance on exports.
The Company is also cautiously optimistic that the selling price of
linen yarn is likely to maintain, if not further increase in 2019.

Protectionism is expected to be on the rise. The Department of
Commerce, Government of India has recommended imposition of
definitive anti-dumping duty for five years ranging from USDO0.5
to USD4.83 per kilogram of “flax yarn” of below 70 Lea Count (or
below 42 Nm) originating in or exported from China. The Group's
linen yarn will be subject to USD2.42/kg of such definitive anti-
dumping duty for export to India from 2019 onwards. Such duty
will be partially reflected in the selling price to the customers. The
China-US trade tension is likely to continue in the coming months,
if not in years. The Company is fortunate that most of the Group’s
direct customers or end consumer brands are not US based hence the
impact of China-US trade war would be indirect and limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Ethiopia project has a planned site area of approximately
300,000 square metres and will be constructed in phases. The first
phase will have a production capacity of 5,000 tonnes of regular
linen yarn and is expected to commence trial production in late
2019/early 2020.

Going forward, leveraging its headquarters in China, the Group will
continue to explore and penetrate into the domestic market and
promote the use of linen fabrics so as to tap into the enormous market
of China with a population of 1.3 billion. With respect to the overseas
market, the Group will further strengthen its communications and
interactions with stakeholders of other linen textile production and
consumption regions through organizing exchanges and conferences,
and participating in product and technology exhibitions. Such
initiatives are expected to reinforce the Group’s relationship with
its clients, strengthen its brand image, further reinforce the Group’s
leadership in the industry and secure mutual growth in both the
domestic and overseas markets.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming ({E#E83) , aged 59, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and making decisions on the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the silk
and textile industry since 1979. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom
Creative”), a company which is owned as to 67.12% by Mr. Ren
since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn manufacturing
business through Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. in December 2001
as its director. He joined the Group in March 2003 when the first
operating member of the Group, Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. Mr. Ren is a director of all
subsidiaries of the Group except Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd (“Zhaosu
Jindi”). He obtained various awards including National Township
Entrepreneur awarded by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC,
National Excellent Young Factory Manager and Zhejiang Provincial
Excellent Entrepreneur. He was a representative of the 9th and 10th
National People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. Mr. Ren is currently
the vice president of China Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association
and the vice-president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Ltd. He is also a director of Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(“Kingdom Investment”) with discloseable interests in the Shares
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the "SFO”). Mr. Ren is also a director of Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd.,
Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk Co., Ltd.(“Jinxiu Jiangnan”) and Huitong
Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Huitong”).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming (JL#8E83) , aged 57, is an executive Director. Mr.
Shen is a director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Jinyuan”), Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang Jinda”)
and Zhaosu Jindi, all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Shen is also a director of Heilongjiang Jinda Flax & Hemp Co.,
Ltd. (“Heilongjiang Jinda”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Shen is responsible for the day-to-day operations and
management of the Group and also takes part in the decision making
of the Group. He is also a director of Kingdom Creative, Jinxiu
Jiangnan and Huitong. Mr. Shen joined the Group in March 2003.

2018 Annual Report — & — \FE &

EITERYITES

FHAXE - BFA TR AREIERITE
E-EELBEAEEVEERE YRAKE
EBBERTENRRA-EREB - LNFE
REGKBARGBITE -RE ST FREMDH
TRERERMARAR ([£EFARE] —KaE
FHEVEB67.12%E e RN E)) FFEFRABLIR - FE1E
EEEEBTEMAERARNNES EEAEN T
T—F+ _ARERERETMYER - BN
EE=F=-A(AXKEEHEEKRE RRNT
SRXTMAERAR ([HIET])KIZZE)MA
AEE -GRGFHWTMARAR ([BRFEHE])
S EEERAEEFANBARCES -REE
BHZEE BETPHRERES2HBECER 2
BESTFREINIEBEERELEE BN
TEBENERETEARRRAGRR -EXLE
BRTEMSHTEGSIEERLERHED
28l K - # /A EKingdom Investment Holdings
Limited ([Kingdom Investment ] ) f)E = - 3% A 7]
PR ERREBEEENFE 71 EEFRPER
Bl ([ REBEMRS]) EXVELE2 R FE3D FEX
ATHRENEZ - EXEERKTARERITRN
BRAF IR IE&AARAR ([HRET
m)RMERREEE (LB ARAR(DER])
MEE-

HITES

ABRALE REAT LR RITEF ALER
I THETEMAERAR (CI&HFERT])
FATIeZEMBRAR (IHHIRE]) MEHS
WHES ZERREHI/ERRFTNEENEB
RALEENMRBARBINFELRENB AR ERE
TEEMEERAR ((REIEE)ZEZ-L
EEBREAEERELENEREEH NTB2ER
SEAK -RARSELNZE SBTHNEBRNE
ZREER T =F=ZAMALEER-



Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (5k7%32) , aged 52, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan,
Zhejiang Jinda and Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd (“Zhaosu Jindi”). He
is also a director of Kingdom Creative, Huitong, Jinxiu Jiangnan,
Zhejiang Yuyuan Photovoltaic Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Yuyuan”) and
Mega East Investment Limited. Before joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Zhang was the assistant to the general manager and the head of
capital clearing division of Kingdom Creative from 2000 to 2002.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong (iL)%), aged 52, is an executive Director. Ms.
Shen is the management controller of the Group. She completed
her professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March Finance
School in the PRC in July 1994 and has more than 20 years of
experience in finance-related area. Ms. Shen is the director of
Heilongjiang Jinda and Zhaosu Jindi. Ms. Shen is also a director of
Kingdom Creative. Before joining the Group in March 2003, she
worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance management
department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (EE& 1), aged 69, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in the trading
of linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th
and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference
and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March
2012. He was the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. from September 2009 to August 2011 and has been
appointed as the permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and a director of
HuaQiao University in 2002. On 22 November 2011, he became a
member of the Election Committee of the Chief Executive Election of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group
in September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors
of Millionfull International Co., Ltd (“Millionfull International”)
which has discloseable interests in the Shares under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a director of
Huitong.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (212 4£) , aged 45, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3663), China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code:
1885), United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2337)
and Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6833),
companies listed on the Main Board of the The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lau is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds
a master’s degree in finance from the City University of Hong Kong.
He has extensive experience in financial and accounting in China
and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in November 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Z {5 ) , aged 45, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 10 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also has three years
of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Lo is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University
of British Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined the Group in May
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (B3 ), aged 53, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan is currently a professor
of Department of International Economics of Zhejiang University
(“ZJU"), a director of China Society of World Economics (CSWE),
an executive director of Zhejiang International Economics and Trade
Association, an academic counselor of Hangzhou WTO consulting
center and a researcher of the Center for Research of Private Economy
(CRPE) of ZJU. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Yan served as a
deputy director in Department of International Trade of Hangzhou
University and a director of Department of International Economics of
ZJU. Mr. Yan was an independent director of Hundsun Technologies
Inc. (Stock Code: 600570), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, from March 2010 to October 2014. He is currently an
independent director of TC Medical Co. Ltd (Stock Code: 600763),
and Zhejiang Xinan Chemical Industrial Group Co. Ltd (Stock Code:
600596), both listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan
graduated from Hangzhou University in 1985 with a Bachelor of
Economics degree. He obtained a master degree in economics from
the Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences in 1988. Mr. Yan was a
senior visiting scholar of Le Havre Business School in France in 1997
and obtained a PhD in Economics from ZJU in 2005. He joined the
Group in May 2016.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BR1=% ), aged 50, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and the financial sector. From
July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 157), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring. Prior to
July 2004, he worked in an international accounting firm and served
senior financial positions in a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock
Market and a renowned German exhibition company. Mr. Chan
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and was a holder of Practitioner’s Endorsement certificate issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries from 2010 to 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hull in the United Kingdom
with a bachelor’s degree in economics and accounting in 1992 and
graduated from the lvey Business School with Western University
(formerly Richard Ivey School of Business with University of Western
Ontario), Canada with an Executive MBA in 2008. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in January 2014.
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It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 84.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 5 and pages 9 to 25 respectively of
this annual report. Save as disclosed in the note 38 of the financial

headed “Chairman’s Statement”

statements on page 206, there have been no major events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year. An indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Five Year Financial
Summary on page 8 and Financial Review sections from pages 16 to
24 respectively of this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. In the pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group
also puts a lot of effort into sustainable development. For example,
the Group's factories proactively adopted all kinds of environmental
protection and energy conservation equipment. The consumption of
steam, water and electricity per tonne of yarn manufactured reduced
by 13%, 8% and 2% respectively during the Year.

For details of the Group’s performance on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group’s
separate ESG report for the Year.
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EEERE

DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 22 March 2019, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per
ordinary Share for the Year. The proposed final dividend, if approved
by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, will be paid on or before 5 July 2019 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as
at 6 June 2019.

None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to waive any
dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 88.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB639,992,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB619,024,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately RMB132,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB209,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 26 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of approximately RMB162,585,000. Details of the movements are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Mr. Yan Jianmiao

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting of the Company provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years
and be eligible for re-election. In accordance with article 87 of the
Articles, Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Zhang Hongwen and Mr. Lo Kwong
Shun Wilson shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

As Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson will be serving as an independent
non-executive Director for nine years in May 2019 since his
appointment on 7 May 2010, pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders.
Mr. Lo will offer himself for re-election as an independent non-
executive Director at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company by way of a separate resolution to be held on 24 May
2019.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
and in which a Director has a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year except as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and note 34 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors” and officers” liability insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the directors and officers of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

The remunerations of the senior management of the Company, during
the Year fall within the following range:
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BREEEAR

RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 AR®1,000,0017T % AKR#1,500,0007T 1

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 28 to 32 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO, which were recorded or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

EERBESTRAERRG HERGOK
ESHEANEERAR

RZB-NF+_A=+—H EFRKRFNH
BARARRARREMEZE (EELFZHLRHE
fBl) BB in - ARBERR D MBS F A REZE 5
K GRPIFE3521EE AR BRALGREFE
HY B RO SIR IR T AR B B S+ PR B Ay T 31T
ANEFETESFXHNFEESTRI ([REFA]) A
HMEARNRE LB FrE RN T

Approximately
Total percentage of
Personal Corporate number of issued Shares
Name of Director Espg Long/short position interests interests Shares held (%)
(Note 1)
HERITRG
BE/ KR AAESR NAfE HAHRORB  BREIL®%)
(Hrat1)
Mr. Ren Weiming E#HREE  Long position 12,072,000 299,500,000 311,572,000 49.48
iR (Note 2)
(Hrit2)
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BeBERHE Long position 418,000 67,000,000 67,418,000 10.71
e (Note 3)
(Hat3)
Ms. Shen Hong B L Long position 480,000 - 480,000 0.08
e
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Notes:

1. The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the
beneficial Shareholders.

2. Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment. Mr. Ren therefore holds a controlling
interest in Kingdom Investment and is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Kingdom Investment.

3. Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of
the issued share capital of Millionfull International and 57.98% and
29.76% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company Limited,
respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in both
Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and is
deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Share options
During the Year, no share options were granted to the Directors or any
of their associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2018, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

FTERRNESERXE

BAEMEEE AIF KB —\E+= =+ —
A ATAL (ARAEFRBBTRA BRI
AR TR BRI A IRIEES R
EDIEI36IED RANBRAKIAEFENBR
i v 2 S

Approximately

percentage
Long/short of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity position Number of Shares Shares (%)
HEBITRAE
RRERB 14 "a/ KR R&OEAR B E DL (%)
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long position 299,500,000 47.56
(Note 1)
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited EmlEA A e
(Baz1)
Millionfull International Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Beneficial owner Long position 64,800,000 10.29
Millionfull International Co., Ltd. (#7:£2) Ez:EE A A
Notes: Htat -
1. Kingdom Investment is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming, an 1. ARAANTEETRFTERRTHBEERE

executive Director and substantial Shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the
Company passed on 15 November 2006, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) with Shareholders’
approval at the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2016 was
adopted on the same date.

Subject to the terms of the Old Scheme and the New Scheme,
the Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any Director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or a company in which the Group
holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid
limit, the total number of Shares available for issue under options
which may be granted under the New Scheme and any other schemes
must not, in aggregate, exceed 62,967,800 Shares, being 10% of
the number of issued shares of the Company as at 30 May 2016, the
date of adoption of the New Scheme, unless separate shareholders’
approval has been obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the New
Scheme shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.
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The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Options carrying rights to subscribe for a maximum of 22,250,000
Shares were granted on 24 August 2015 (the “Date of Grant”)
pursuant to the Old Scheme and 16,250,000 options remained
outstanding under the Old Scheme as at 31 December 2018,
representing approximately 2.58% of the Shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of this annual report, with details as follows:

EARDHORBEINFERATHESE  (HKH
B BB I B B R X P B IRE R AT A ) W
B BZBUARERB: (VEEREXRLEH
BREAHAOESXABIME A RERMT
B F BN kiR mEE-

ARARR-_ZE—RAFENA-+TB ([FHAH])
R 4% 8 51 B 5% H B 7542 7 AT 3R B8 & %22,250,000
BEp AR —_E—NE+_A=+—BREE
#TE105E 16,250,000 RITE R BB #E (FBE RA
AEIRAFRBA B BITRMDAL2.58%)  #F15
mE

Number of Shares issuable under the options

BRESROTRTROUE
Exercise Granted Exercised Forfeited ~ Cancelled
price per Asat  during the during during during Asat  Exercise
Grantees Date of Grant Share 1/1/2018 year the year the year theyear  31/12/2018  period
S
R —B-0\F
Bk —g-N% t=A
ARA RHAH i -B-B  FREE  FATE  FARR  FRE¥ =t-8B RS
HK$
BT
Employees of the Group 24/08/2015 20 5,750,000 - - - - 5750,000  Notel
in aggregate
AEEEE @ “E-R¥NACTEA Wi
Supplier 24/08/2015 20 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 Aote 1
R “2-RENAZTRA Hit1
Sales agents 24/08/2015 20 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000  Note 7
BERE “E-RF\AZ1EA i1
Total 16,250,000 - - - - 16,250,000  Note 1
CE Wi
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Note 1:

Subject to the Old Scheme, the share options (the “Share Options”) granted to
the grantees are valid for a period of four years commencing on the Date of
Grant and shall be exercisable during the following periods:

(i) up to 30% of the Share Options granted shall be vested and exercisable
at any time after the expiration of six (6) months from the Date of
Grant; and

(i) the remaining Share Options granted shall be vested and exercisable at
any time after the expiration of twenty-four (24) months from the Date
of Grant.

Share Options carrying rights to subscribe for 16,250,000 Shares
(representing approximately 3.53% of the Company’s issued Shares
as at the date of this annual report) have been vested and become
exercisable at an exercise price of HK$2.00 per Share.

No Share Option under the Old Scheme was exercised during the
Year. No option was granted or exercised under the New Scheme
during the Year.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted a share award plan (“Share Award
Plan”) on 26 August 2016. The purpose of the Share Award Plan
is to incentivize, recognize and reward eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group, attract and retain personnel, and align
the interests of award holders with that of the Shareholders to
promote the long-term development and financial performance of the
Company.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Plan and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market
at the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and
issued under the Share Award Plan. The trustee of the Share Award
Plan (“Trustee”) shall hold the awarded Shares on trust for the award
holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant award
holders according to the Share Award Plan rules. Upon vesting, the
Trustee shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost to
such award holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then
prevailing market price by way of market order and remit the net
proceeds to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders.
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The Trustee had purchased an aggregate of 19,400,000 Shares on the
market in 2017 to hold on trust for the selected persons pursuant to
the terms and conditions of the Share Award Plan rules and the trust
deed. On 25 May 2018, 19,400,000 Shares have been awarded to
selected persons of which 19,370,000 Shares have been accepted
pursuant to the Share Award Plan. The Board will constantly review
and determine at its absolute discretion such number of Awarded
Shares to be awarded to the selected persons under the Share
Award Plan with such vesting conditions as the Board may deem
appropriate.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance have been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 21.8% of the Group’s total sales for the Year and
sales to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
5.6% of the Group’s total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 40.0%
of the Group’s total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 24.7% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions
The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons and which subsisted
during the Year. The transactions constituted “continuing connected
transactions” for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

1. Lease agreements

(@)

Jinyuan Lease Agreement on 30 December 2017, a lease
agreement (the “Jinyuan Lease Agreement”) was entered
into by Zhejiang Jinyuan, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company with Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative, a company which Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest pursuant to which Zhejiang
Jinyuan has leased a property located at Building 13
to 16, Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan County,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC, from Kingdom Creative as
the Group’s office, for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020 at an annual rental of RMB200,000.

Jinlainuo Lease Agreement on 30 January 2017, a
lease agreement (the “Jinlainuo Lease Agreement”)
was entered into by Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”) with Kingdom Creative pursuant to
which Zhejiang Jinlainuo has leased a property located
at Building 18 to 25, Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan
County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, from Kingdom
Creative for its manufacturing facilities, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019
at an annual rental of RMB300,000. Due to business re-
alignment, Zhejiang Jinlainuo is in the process of de-
registration. Upon mutual agreement of both parties, the
Jinlainuo Lease Agreement ended on 30 June 2018 and
will be leased by Zhejiang Jinyuan. The lease agreement
of the same properties with a term of one year from
1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 with an annual rent of
RMB300,000 (same as the original Zhejiang Jinlainuo
Lease Agreement).
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Purchases of chemicals and additives

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
purchased chemicals and additives for scouring and bleaching
from Jinxiu Jiangnan with an amount of RMB452,000 (2017:
RMB1,023,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a controlling equity
interest over this company. The raw material purchase was
made according to published prices and conditions offered by
the supplier to its major customers.

Rental and other terms for these lease arrangements were
negotiated between the parties on arm’s length basis with
reference to the then prevailing market rates. As each of the
applicable percentage ratios for the Jinyuan Lease Agreement
and the Jinlainuo Lease Agreement (on an aggregated basis) are
less than 0.1%, and the purchases of chemicals and additives
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms and
all the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) were less
than 5% and the total consideration less than HK$3,000,000,
the above lease agreements and purchases of chemicals
and additives transactions are exempted from all reporting,
announcement and independent Shareholders’” approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement on 30 June 2017,
Zhejiang Jinda and Zhejiang Jinyuan, both indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement”)
with Zhejiang Yuyuan, pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinda
and Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to purchase electricity from
Zhejiang Yuyuan for electricity generated from the photovoltaic
electricity system owned, managed and operated by Yuyuan
for a term of three years commencing from 1 July 2017 and
ending on 30 June 2020, at an annual cap of no more than
RMB3,500,000 per year. Mr. Ren Weiming, who ultimately
controls the Group, also has a controlling equity interest over
Zhejiang Yuyuan.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan with an amount of
RMB2,333,000.
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The price of electricity was made with a discount rate of
approximately 3.5% to the market prices. As the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the
Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement, on an annual
basis, exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase
Agreement is only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements, but is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For further details, please also refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 June 2017 and 3 July 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions had been entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(i)  either (@) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
are no available comparable terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions as contemplated under the Photovoltaic
Electricity Purchase Agreement and the auditors confirmed the
compliance of all matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, there was
no other transaction which needs to be disclosed as a connected
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Creative, in
certain private companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private
Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing
and/or trading industry, banking and finance leasing (the “Excluded
Business”), which are fundamentally different from the products
manufactured by the Group.
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Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group'’s business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (“Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.

Presently, Mr. Ren has no plan to inject the aforesaid Excluded
Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment and Mr.
Ren an annual confirmation that ithe has fully complied with its/
his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 14 December 2018

(the “Dividend Policy”).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the annual dividend to be distributed
by the Company to the Shareholders shall be not less than 20% of
the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders in any financial year,
subject to the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Articles.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance; Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions
and strategies; the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans; possible effects on the Group's
creditworthiness; general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any
restriction under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as the articles of
association of the Company (as amended from time to time).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 54 to 75.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 17 May 2019
to Friday, 24 May 2019, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall
ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May 2019.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
(subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 5 June 2019 to Thursday, 6 June 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed
final dividend (subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting), unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall
ensure that, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 4 June 2019. The
proposed final dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid to Shareholders on
or before Friday, 5 July 2019 whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Thursday, 6 June
2019.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 22 March 2019
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organisation which is open and
accountable to the Company’s Shareholders. The Directors believe
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important
for maintaining and promoting investor confidence. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles and code
provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviation to code
provisions A.2.1 as disclosed below, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout
the Year.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief executive
officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the Company,
is also responsible for overseeing the general operations of the
Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters affecting
the operations of the Company. Given the nature and extent of the
Group's operation and Mr. Ren’s extensive experience in the industry,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Company to operate efficiently. The Board will
continuously review this structure from time to time to ensure
appropriate and timely action to meet changing circumstances, if
necessary.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by Directors and devised its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the provisions of the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018 and up
to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, four of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Director and three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance, promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs, convening
Shareholders” meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the
Shareholders at Shareholders’” meetings as may be required by the
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The composition of the Board and attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee during the Year under
review are as follows:

EXerHETeRARHAARANMBREER
B W EERBERRF R REEK-
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Relevant Meetings Attended/Held

Directors =

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Ren Weiming EEREE
(Chairman of the Board) (EE2TE)

Mr. Shen Yueming LRALE

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RBXEE

Ms. Shen Hong LB L

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BAeBEE

Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BIRGEEE
(Chairman of the Audlit Committee) (BEZEB1E)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEGRLE
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) ([EEZE2TfE)

Mr. Yan Jianmiao RERLE
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (BHZE2ZfE)
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The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 28 to 32 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed,
there is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board or senior
management of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive Directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years and is eligible for re-election. In accordance
with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Zhang Hongwen
and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring Directors
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

As Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson will be serving as an independent
non-executive Director for nine years in May 2019 since his
appointment on 7 May 2010, pursuant to Code provision A.4.3 of
the CG Code, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders. Mr. Lo will offer himself
for re-election as an independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company by way of a
separate resolution to be held on 24 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 78 to 83 which states the reporting
responsibilities of the Group’s auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the
applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations
of the Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, renewed his
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years on 1
January 2019.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit, independent
non-executive Directors, renewed their appointments with the
Company with the same terms for another three years on 1 January
2019. Mr. Yan Jianmiao was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, the appointment of which was approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2016. Mr.
Yan has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years with similar terms as other independent non-
executive Directors with effect on 30 May 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors are provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During
the Year, the Company arranged a training covering topics on latest
changes on corporate governance, disclosure of interests obligations
under the SFO and Takeover Codes for Directors’ continuous
professional development. All Directors attended the training.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against them. During
the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and officers of
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary of
the Company, attended relevant professional training for not less than
15 hours.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the
code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee are to consider and recommend to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Yan Jianmiao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration of the Directors, after comparing with that of similar
textile companies listed on the Stock Exchange. The attendance
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the said
meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EEHA

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RBX e

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Chairman) BEBLE (FE)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the NC are
to review the Board’s diversity policy and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, based on skills, knowledge and
experience, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
NC also determined the policy for the nomination of Directors and
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
by the NC to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The NC comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman of the Nomination
Committee).

One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the NC
reviewed its terms of reference, the structure, size and composition
of the Board, nomination policy and Board’s diversity policy. The
NC also evaluated the independence of Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson,
an independent non-executive Director, who will be serving for the
Company for nine years in May 2019. The attendance record of each
member of the NC at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors Ex=pE

Mr. Shen Yueming BB AR 45 A

Mr. Lau Ying Kit Blmftns

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) — BEE%%E (F/E)
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Nomination Policy

Objective

The NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election
as directors including independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs”) at general meetings or appoint as directors
including INEDs to fill casual vacancies.

The NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number of
candidates more than the number of directors to be appointed or re-
appointed at a general meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to
be filled.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors
rest with the entire Board.

Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC in

assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

J Reputation for integrity

J Accomplishment and experience in the textile industry
o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
J Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,

age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

Retiring INEDs are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. For those who have served as INEDs
for a period of 9 consecutive years may be stand for re-election at
a general meeting, subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders at the general meeting. For the avoidance of doubt,
the 9-year period for determining the independence of an INED for
nomination by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting
would count from his/her date of first appointment as an INED until
the date of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent
to be appointed as an INED and to the public disclosure of their
personal data on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as an INED.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the NC, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the NC prior to its meeting. The NC may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting, the NC shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons
shall not assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand
for election at the general meeting.
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In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will
be sent to Shareholders. The circular will set out the names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to Shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available, and
the “highest number of votes” method will be used to determine who
shall be elected as an INED.

The NC may request candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Review and Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

2018 Annual Report — & — \FE &

REHEHEEFSRAUNERAS LBEEN
RIEABF AR AR AR Z BB K - AR
3 R AR AR E AR R R BN SRR R EHT
BREREANGS BREE (BRERRBHL
BB ERFHAREATEMLER -

/E#ﬂ%ﬁ}\#ﬂxﬁﬁaﬁl BARRMWMERES
BANBH HARIEE AR o

SN AREEBREAUREMRRAS
EENMEFREERRTRE-

HAMREAABATREARZEREBE - KA 1K
REFREFLIFATERTAE

o
it

[

REZBEGUR
o BB R 3

RRANE Al BREREARHEE

EEEZIMBERRBUR
TRBEREABBEUTRANZ TEAE AEE
BIEETRARESBITENLS R Fik - X
b R#HEE S BEKFE LR e AH
MEREFH RERTHEEUEERNBEEALE
EeFRknEskERNAKE-



Corporate Governance Report

During the Year, the NC had reviewed and compared the diversity

of the Board with all the listed companies in Hong Kong, in terms of
number of all directors, number of INEDs, gender and average age.
The NC also reviewed the professional qualification and expertise
of all the Directors. The Board’s composition (together with details

on textile industry experience, age, gender and holding of office in

textile association) are as follows:

Name

e

REN Weiming

T4

SHEN Yueming

LR

ZHANG Hongwen
5RIE X

SHEN Hong

ks

NGAN Kam Wai Albert
BeE

LAU Ying Kit

BZEHE

LO Kwong Shun Wilson
RERE

YAN Jianmiao

=< 3=:]

Measurable objectives

Textile Industry
experience

METRER

Yes
=]
Yes

=]
Yes

B
Yes
E)
Yes

No
<
[ )
No
I~
|-
No
<
[

Age
i

59
59
57
57
52
52
52
52
69
69
45
45
45
45
53
53

The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy

are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile

industry experience.

2) At least one Director should hold office/honorary title in the
textile association in order to ensure the Company to receive
first-hand information about the development and challenges of

the industry.

3)  Gender is not the key consideration. It will be based on merit

and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the

Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
as well as the Group's internal audit function and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

J to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yan Jianmiao, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee at the
said meetings is set out in the table below:

BEEpns

Name of Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman) Bl ()

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BERERE
M. Yan Jianmiao BREEEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the final results of 2017,
interim results of 2018 and the continuing connected transactions
with the external auditors, and met with the external auditors
twice without the presence of the management in 2018. The Audit
Committee also reviewed and approved the internal audit report and
considered the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the Group’s internal
control functions, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
internal control and risk management, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have
been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a sound and effective internal control to
safeguard Shareholders” investment and assets of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee is entrusted by the Board to
monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis so as to ensure that the
internal control and risk management systems in place, including the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
accounting, internal audit, compliance and financial reporting
functions of the Company are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls. The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks associated with the achievement of its
operational objective. The day-to-day operation of the Company is
entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its
own conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to
the policies set by the Board/Audit Committee. The Company carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

The Company has established an optimized risk management and
internal control system consisting of the Board, Audit Committee,
management team, internal control and all departments of the
Company. In respect of risk management and internal control, all
departments of the Company are the first line of defence, the internal
control and management team are the second line of defence and
the Audit Committee under the Board are the third line of defence.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the development of a sound
risk management and internal control system of the Company and
the effective implementation of risk management, and is the highest
decision-making authority for risk management and internal control
of the Company.
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The primary objective of risk management is to have all the business
risks effectively identified, measured, analysed and controlled, such
as having them measured against defined limits, monitored, reported
and managed (including mitigation of risks), followed by the pursuit
of business development on the premise of keeping risks in check.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee conducted review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems twice during
the Year including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.

During the Year, the Company scrutinized and identified potential
risks associated with its corporate structure and business operation by
executing basic risk management procedures in all key operations.
A risk register of the Company was established to gain substantial
information on its overall risk characteristics, providing a solid
foundation for risk management and internal control.

The Company conducted an analysis and assessment on the identified
risks based on their possibility and influence, so as to determine the
risk levels and identify the significant risks faced by the Company.
A summary of key risks identified from the perspective of global
economy, industry and company level was reviewed and discussed
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Based on review of the results of risk management and internal
control, no material failure or weakness was found in respect of
risk monitoring during the Year. The management procedures of
financial reports and information disclosure of the Company is in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control of the Company is effective during
the Year and up to date of this annual report.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that any inside information of the Company
should be announced as soon as practicable. The Company reviews
from time to time its internal guidelines on inside information or
potentially price sensitive information with reference to its own and
industry circumstances and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

The Company’s policy contains a strict prohibition on unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Chairman and the chief
financial officer of the Company are the key spokespersons of the
Company in all external media communications.

The purpose of streamlining the communications of the Group with
the media is to regulate all media communication activities, protect
the interests of the Company and keep inside information strictly
confidential prior to its disclosure.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

RENRE

Service rendered

Audit Services EZIRTE

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2018
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 78 to 83. Save as disclosed above and in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report”, the Company did
not engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
called by the Board)

@i

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including
putting forward proposals or moving a resolution at the
EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding
in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM,
the agenda of the EGM including the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar. If
the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an
EGM within two months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.
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o If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the Articles,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.

(i) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by post
or email to ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the
investors relation department of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the Shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.
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The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.

There is no change in the Articles during the Year. An up-to-date
version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2018, the market capitalisation of the Company
was approximately HK$799,691,060 based on 629,678,000 Shares
outstanding at the closing price of HK$1.27 per share.

The details of the substantial shareholders can be found on page 40
of this annual report.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)
Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders’ Rights”.

TRERA®RE

AEERERERFEREEZTNBE  KNR
BERREEHARBHRE NEBREEHA
KEMED-

AR RIS R B (R o] 22 8 - A1 B A BB ST AR
A EHRANRF LB uh o

RZBE—-NFE+-A=+—B KQATELE
799,691,060/ 7T » JTHE12629,678,000/% 3 1T FE 7h
DR U T B EAR .27 Tt & e

TERRZFABASHAFRIOA -

BeER
REABBATRER RN ER:

ok TEZERAER AT
BEEERKRER
1835R A& FIFR 05442
(AN EEE)

BH:  +8523628 2284
B - ir@kingdom-china.com

REEH

(RN —EHABATERSE A ER/EST
BEREMER AREMLTRTAETERSE
BARFRBTERROAEREMEXER IR
BREREEERARRARREENENS KB
FRIEMBERER - ARABIREBRAR
FEARES [BCRERN | I REmEENETAETR
BRAERE-

Kingdom Holdings Limited £3Z &K EMR AT

LD









/8

Independent Auditor’s Report
B X % B R

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 84 to 208, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREFTHEONMESHN

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FET BB E 7 BB AT

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
intangible assets was RMB874 million which represented
41% of the Group’s total assets. As the carrying amount
of the Group’s net assets was higher than the Company’s
market capitalisation, management performed an
impairment test on its non-current assets. This assessment
requires management to make certain key assumptions,
such as cash flow projections covering a five-year period,
the future growth rate and the discount rate which are
highly judgemental.

R-ZE-\Ft-A=+—0 9% BFENIRKHE Ll
ERNFUARET EEMNRE B/ ARES874,000,000
Tt BEEEEELAENN% - AR BEEEEEFE
MEESESR BRRNME WEEECHIERDE
EETRENA - BREREREELETHRER O
hERBSRETER  RAIER LR K FETH-

Our audit procedures included assessing the key
assumptions including those related to future increases
in turnover, expected growth rates and discount rates,
projection period and disposal values of the non-current
assets at the end of the projection period applied. In
performing our audit procedures, we involved our
internal valuation specialists in assessing the valuation
methodology used and the key assumptions applied.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HAEETEE @

Key audit matter

REETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REREFTHEONMESRHN

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

FET B B E R BB AT

The Company provided detailed information in note 3 to
the financial statements.

BRBNMBRRMEIREEBFE -

We also reviewed the historical financial performance of
the business units and compared them with the original
forecasts when evaluating management’s budgeting
process.

BRI ERSEBEINESR MR W EERA R
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of the Directors and
Corporate Governance Report included in the Annual Report, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the
Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to report that fact.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHfEER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=ZF—/\F+=H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Income tax (expense)/credit
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic

Diluted

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

A
Fioh=JDN
EH

H oYzt M55
HE R DA
TTERFX
H s
FARE RN

BRBLATER], (BE)

FrEii (X)) %

FREF

B T 5IIR B RE1E
SREIEE A
FEFR I 1 2

BAREBERES
FEAERGEER

&F (&8)
BN

i3

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T R AREF T
5 1,245,643 1,023,962
(987,762) (907,694)

257,881 116,268

5 24,308 25,575
(48,687) (39,361)

(73,020) (49,670)

(6,818) (38,200)

6 (21,520) (17,712)
7 132,144 (3,100)
10 (28,957) 3,722
103,187 622

102,006 (3,132)

1,181 3,754

12 RMB AR#0.17T  RMB AR (0.01)7T
12 RMB AR¥0.167t  RMB AK(0.01)7T




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEfEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z =L —/\F+=H=+—HIFFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

F A
1% 1E 1% B A BE E 3

DEEBRRNEMEH

Wz

BEBINRBTOEN Z8

FREERZAE

f T 518 B FE S -
FATEEA
SERR | M 26

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
103,187 622

86 613

103,273 1,235
102,092 (2,519)
1,181 3,754
103,273 1,235

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O B I AR O 2R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Other intangible assets
Prepayments for equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Other current assets

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Dividend payable

Tax payable

Other current liability

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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FRBEE
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REMF
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HipEEE
REBTENFOR
EERIAE E
HpIERBEE

FRBEERE

REBEE

(E3

FEW B 5B N R R IR

B e KA REY
IR

HipfRE & E

REERLEERA

ReMReEEY

MEEERE

REBEE
ENEZERAEENREE
HENFERBERE M
TEE®MT A
FHRRITEER

FERTREE

e IR

HiRE B E

mEBERE
REBEEFE
EERERABRE

Notes
it

13
14
15
16

17

18
19

20

22
22

23
24
21
25

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
+=ZBA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
803,778 726,532
6,929 7,529
63,062 64,837
7,248 5,834
17,139 7,571
5,596 14,640

407 407
904,159 827,350
557,087 531,212
295,115 310,215
60,704 68,650

- 851

68,857 50,314
241,826 173,824
1,223,589 1,135,066
245,675 189,783
123,300 93,979
3,438 7,002
508,984 519,561

1 —

28,133 16,054

- 851

909,531 827,230
314,058 307,836
1,218,217 1,135,186
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B O IR &

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —B—tF
+=HB=+—H +-—A=+—8©
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR%T ARET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERABAR
LIABILITIES 1,218,217 1,135,186
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIE A & 17 14,308 9,390
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRBRITREE 25 50,400 75,600
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 64,708 84,990
Net assets BEFE 1,153,509 1,050,196
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of BRRIER ARIGER
the parent
Share capital fi& 7 26 6,329 6,329
Treasury shares EFR’RG5 28 (19,508) (19,508)
Reserves ] 30 1,126,068 1,030,936
1,112,889 1,017,757
Non-controlling interests FEEEHIMEE R 40,620 32,439
Total equity MR 1,153,509 1,050,196
Ren Weiming Shen Yueming
R4 5H L
Director Director
EZE EFE

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
AGHE%‘E%EH%

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ =&

At 1 January 2017

Profit for the year

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/{oss)
for the year

Capital injection

Final 2016 dividend declared

Repurchase of share capital

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Equity-settled share award plan

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Profit for the year
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for the year
Capital injection

Final 2017 dividend declared
Equity-settled share award plan

Transfer from retained profits

At 31 December 2018

& These reserve

RZ%-
ERET
REBNEBOEL 28

tF-H-H

EnzEkE/ (BR)EE
BER-T- A ERERE
BERA
NERRERRELH

NEEGERN RS
ReRDEN

ERiEH
BEBNRHOENZE

EREANGER

‘EE
BER-T-tFRERE

NEEGERN R

aRerDEr

RZE-N\E+=A=1-A

SAFF—HA=+—HAULFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SAARAARL
Share Share Non-
Share Share  Treasury Merger  Statutory option award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital -~ premium shares resrve reserve reserve reserve reserve profs Total ~ interests equity
BEE  ROZR #2R

RE&  RBEE EERE  AHEE  EEER L1 fif ENRE REER #it B ERAE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTTL ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTL ARMTR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
(note26) ~(note30)  (note28)  (note3)  (note30)  (note27)  (note29)  (note 30)
(W) (Wito)  (Wze)  (Keo)  (Kaso) (W) (W) (W)

6,329 270,955 = 196,816 112,536 2,012 = (3,634) 482,737 1,067,751 18,685 1,086,436

- - - - - (3,132) (3,132) 3,754 622

= = = = = = = 613 = 613 = 613

- - - - - - - 613 (3,132) 2,519 3,754 1,235

- - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000

= 2,/636) - - - - = = (25,526) (28,162) = (28,162)

- - (19508 = = = = = - (19508 - (19508

= = = = = 195 = = = 195 = 195

- - - - 1,679 - - - (1,679) - = =

6,329 268,319* (19,508  196,816*  114,215* 2,207 - (3,021 452.400* 1,017,757 32439 1,050,19

- - - - - - - - 102,006 102,006 1,181 103,187

- - - - - - - 86 - 86 - 86

- - - - - - - 86 102,006 102,092 1,181 103,273

- - - - - - - - 7,000 7,000

= = = = = = = = (10,527) (10,527) = (10,527)

- - - - - 3,567 - = 3,567 = 3,567

- - - - 13,519 - - - (13,519) - - -

6329 268319t (19508)  196816* 127,734 2,007 3,567 (2,935 530360% 1,112,889 40620 1,153,509

accounts comprise the
RMB1,126,068,000 (2017: RMB1,030,936,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—F—\F+=—HA=+—HIFEF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit (loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Fair value losses on derivative instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges
Equity-settled share option expense
Equity-settled share award expense
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Reversal of impairment of inventories
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Provision/(reversal of provision) for impairment
of trade receivables
Finance costs
Bank interest income

Increase in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
notes receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase from other non-current assets
Proceeds from pledged deposits
New pledged deposits
(Increase)/decrease in derivative financial assets
Increase in trade and notes payables
Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

REEFHNRESRE
BrBLATE A (B51R)

NP S REH AR -

TETAMREBERR
—TEEREHRNRS
M s A B R IR R X
VARE 23 45 B LD 2R B =T 81
e
T30 AE & A FRIEH 55
H i ST B B 5
FEREED
HEWE BFE &&iE
HEERE
FENE 5 R FOR B
BE (BfEED)
BT R
RITHB WA

T
R 5 R E
Hb,/ ()

B WS R E AR GRR

R/ (380)
AR B A B

B 1 3 0 P15
HHEE IR
PTESBARE (), WD

FERN B B RS REN R IRIE N
H B RROR N IEER B AE AN

REEENRS
B A B
SERIZES TR

RGSEBNE IR S R 8% 58

2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
132,144 (3,100)
3,438 7,002

- 195

3,567 =
71,424 60,717
1,814 1,446
586 536
(1,179) (4,540)
405 730

412 (312)
21,520 17,712
(1,044) (899)
233,087 79,487
(24,696) (17,081)
14,688 (11,939)
7,907 (24,215)

- (407)

110,839 69,183
(141,520) (57,513)
(7,002) 5,788
55,892 60,294
29,321 43,665
278,516 147,262
1,044 899
(2,916) (14,463)
276,644 133,698
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=ZF—/\F+=H=+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Prepayments for equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Share repurchase

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position
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FNRELRSEEY
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FERRERBEESEY

RERREEEWEHRIN
R MIRITHERR
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RaEEY

2018 2017
—E2-N\#F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
(150,142) (150,355)
(17,139) (7,571)
- 1,767
14,111 3,557
(153,170) (152,602)
- (19,508)
756,804 779,245
(792,581) (815,987)
(59,794) (70,183)
71,932 82,554
(26,392) (25,351)
(10,526) (28,162)
5,000 10,000
(55,557) (87,392)
67,917 (106,296)
173,824 279,511
85 609
241,826 173,824
241,826 173,824
241,826 173,824




Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarns.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong

1.

Kong.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

DRAEH

Overseas Kingdom Limited
Overseas Kingdom Limited

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”)

TEEEERERAR
(IBEzEl)

Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
L& TEMARAF

Nominal value of

Place and date issued ordinary/

of incorporation/ registered
establishment share capital
EAL B8
B %K B EEREEERRE
British Virgin Islands (“BVI") HK$0.01/HK$500

26 July 2006 0.0187T,/500%8 T
RERTES
((RRELEHE])

“EERFLACTRA

Hong Kong, China HK$1,250,000

10 September 2004 1,250,000/ 7T
REES

—TTMENATH
PRC US$43,820,000

18 March 2003 43,820,000 7T
H

“2E=F=ATNR

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

RAREEER

SEEBRERARNN-TEAFLA=—
AERSHSEMA L AEREBERAT
ARARBR-BEAE+=A+=REE
BB A X SHERAF ([BRH)) Lo

AEBEBRELEERHEETMY -

AN B HY 5 % B R B ik A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands : £+ Z
EEMB RGN EE 2R/ AERI83HA M
FL54HE o

BREHMEATNER
ARAMBRBFBEAT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company  Principal activities

LN
EEREEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
BE CE3
100% - Investment holding
RERK
- 100%  Investment holding and
trading
RERRLES
- 100%  Manufacture and

sale of linen yarns

SERBEZMY

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Name of company

AREE

Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
THETTMARAR

Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.
IHEBEMARAT

Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd.
HIEEZMERAT

Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd.
MIERHBEBRAR

Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd.
RESHEMERAR

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

Nominal value of

Place and date issued ordinary/

AEAIREEER @

of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
establishment share capital  attributable to the Company
R, BRI YN
Rt EREH EEREE ERRA EBEESEL
Direct Indirect
BE B
PRC US$18,500,000 = 100%
17 October 2003 18,500,000 7T
hE
“EF=FtATLR
PRC US$10,000,000 = 100%
26 October 2006 10,000,000 7T
hE
“ETRFTAZTAR
PRC RMB100,000,000 = 100%
28 May 2012 AE#100,000,0007T
hE
b S5 B AN
PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%
28 February 2012 AR #10,000,0007C
hE
“E-—f-A-T/H
PRC RMB30,000,000 = 100%
23 May 2007 AK#30,000,0007T
hE

—EEHFRA-+=H

Principal activities

TREH

Manufacture and
sale of linen yarns

EERHETNY

Manufacture and
sale of linen yarns

EERHETNY

Manufacture and
sale of linen yarns

EERHETMY

Manufacture and
sale of linen fibre

EERHETMY

Processing of agricultural
products
REmMT



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Name of company

AREE

Kingdom Europe S.R.L.
Kingdom Europe S.R.L.

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC
(“Kingdom (Ethiopia)”)

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC
([Kingdom (Ethiopia) | )

Heilongjiang Jinda Flax Hemp
Co., Ltd.
RETLEMFERAA

Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax and
Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.

Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax and
Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.

Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment
HEMRIL
B3R A

Italy
7 September 2007
BAR
“ZZHENALR

Ethiopia
16 July 2014
RERLD
—E-EOFELATAA

PRC
11 March 2016

HE
“Z-RF=A+-H

PRC
23 February 2018

hE
—F-\F-A=tz=H

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital

BRI

LEREEERBA

EUR502,646
502,64681 7T

US$5,715,000
RMB61,530,000
5,715,0003 1T
AE61,530,00075

RMB110,000,000
AE#110,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

AEAIREEER @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

P NG|
EEEEEI
Direct Indirect
=8 GiE
- 100%
- 100%
- 73%
- 75%

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

Principal activities

TREH

Trading
25

Manufacture and
sale of linen yarns

EERHETNY

Manufacture and
sale of linen yarns

EERHETMY

Research and sale of
flax and hemp seed

TFE B $H & SE M R A i

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000), except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

RBLEE @)

EHEE @

B B A R B AN A B B9 B 7S R 2R MY 3R 45 BR A AB
Bl WEHEA—HEHRER -WEATHN
EERAEBESZEHENBBESFA
R WHEESHFAREEZZSEHEKIEE
HAIE-

FrERERRARHEEERAE WA
AxMEREEKERAERSEENES
MEYNAHKREFEEEE-

MEEEXBERABR TN LEXARANBARNE
AARCRATL ) —TRIE I TR E R — A%
ZHEERNE AAEEEEHTEEES
ZHIIREHR - MBLAREAEERNE
(YR LG RERRXH A

M AREREHMB AR ZEHE BlgRr
IHEROZMBARMNEE (BREEE) RA
18 ~ (i) (E fa] 428 1) 14 4 22 O BR 10 2 3R B Gii)
RIS NRCEk ) Rt IR B 258 RRER ()T
WREBHAAEBE (VERRBRENAR
BELG)BRFEMELEENBERLE
Al - 38 7O HoAth 22 [ 2 N RE SR A AN SR (B R
BRI ERIMASEER N EAHEES
BERARENEREESH D BERSH
R (2EA) o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 1 and
IAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of IFRS
9 and IFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge

accounting.

The Group adopted IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group
has not adjusted the applicable opening balances at 1 January
2018 because the adoption of IFRS 9 has limited effect on the
Group's statements of financial position.

(@)

Classification and measurement

To determine their classification and measurement
category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except
equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the entity’s business model for
managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual
cash flow characteristics.

The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets,
including financial assets at fair value through profit of
loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
investments and held-to-maturity investments have been
replaced by:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DlSCLOSU RES (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments at amortised cost;

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with gains or losses recycled to
profit or loss on derecognition;

Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with no recycling of gains or
losses to profit or loss on derecognition; and

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

As of 1 January 2018, the category of loans and
receivables under IAS 39, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables and pledged deposits, were transferred
to debt instruments at amortised cost under IFRS 9.
Meanwhile, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss remained unchanged under IFRS 9.

The accounting for the Group’s financial liabilities
remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DlSCLOSU RES (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a
lifetime basis. The Group applied the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shortfalls over the
remaining life of all of its trade and notes receivables.
Furthermore, the Group applied the general approach
and record twelve-month expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the possible default events and credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure
for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition on its financial assets
included in deposits and other receivables. The adoption
of the standard had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and position.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Conftracts with Customers

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it
applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model

to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects

the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in

exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The

principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for

measuring and recognising revenue. The standard requires

entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of

the relevant fact and circumstances when applying each step of
the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a

contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The Group adopted IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
method of adoption after performing a detailed assessment on
the impact of the adoption.

The Group is involved in the business of selling linen yarns.
The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale of linen
yarns only include one performance obligation. The Group has
concluded that revenue should be recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally upon delivery of the goods. Therefore, the adoption
of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the timing of revenue
recognition.

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance in other
payables and accruals. Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified
as contract liabilities which is also included in other payables
and accruals. Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB6,595,000 from advances from customers
to contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 in relation to
the consideration received from customers in advance as
at 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS
15, RMB24,036,000 was reclassified from advances from
customers to contract liabilities in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance for the sale of goods.

As for the disclosure requirements for the consolidated
financial statements, the Group disaggregated revenue
recognised from contracts with customers into categories that
depict how the nature and timing are affected by economic
factors. Refer to Note 5 for the disclosure on disaggregated
revenue.

In conclusion, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to [AST

Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint venture?
Leases’

Insurance Contracts’

Definition of Material?

and IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’
Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures’
Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’
Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 23’

Amendments to IAS 28
IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether
an arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases —
Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees
and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 16
to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (#)

that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and
measure the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-
use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within
12 months as of the date of initial application. During 2018,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact
of adoption of IFRS 16. As disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2018, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in aggregate of approximately RMB4,196,000. The
Group has estimated that right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
be recognised at 1 January 2019 will not be significant.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information. A
misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2018

2.3

= na = —H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or
tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

24

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

TESTHBEBE

DAREEFE

AEERSEHRERARRIABEFTERN
EERMTA-FABAREE DEME2HE
EZHRAERNMETNEFR ST B
EEEMURAEZRAEMNNER -
REEFEDNERNBERLIEEEXERAE
MR ZNEEXBBENEIEMSX (ERA
FEMHENERATIREEXRBENRAHN
MIGET T BREAMNTHARAKER]
SHENTS - BEXBEBENAABETER
miE2EE SEEN A BEEMAIRRE
B (RRMH2EERRENKELBEN R

17%) -

FERMEENRIABEAEFRTIH2EE
ARERZEERY &S RERERA L
ZEEETH  RAARERZEERIES
REEMANT S EE R EE KBNS

2k,
ge/J°

AEEFERERRTRBREAGTED BUE
AAEARBENGBERT UEENRRHE
AR ABREERIERTABRREA
B

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T

105



106

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/\#F+ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R —ZE—/\F+-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTHREBEmw
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BER @
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) ZABFEATINEEN—BKEENE
conditions applies; B
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same ) ZEREXEERFA-SEHN
group; e
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy E—ERAS—EE(IHSA
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow CINLNEPNCIEAC EN =SNG
subsidiary of the other entity); MBS R RIHEERA]:
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiiy ZEREAEEAR—RBE=
same third party; THEERE:
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the ivy X—EBRA—ZFE=ZFTWEE
other entity is an associate of the third party; REl ME—EBERBR/ZEE=H
)il l/NC]
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v ZERDAREENEEFH
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an ENEMEROESREANMR
entity related to the Group; EVBER IR B A B
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBX@EMREALEN
person identified in (a); AR
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) @O)EFMEALAIHZERE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEAXENRRLES (NZ
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ERNERR)NEIZEREK
of the entity); and g8: ]
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) ZEEHPTBKE BT K
it is a part, provides key management personnel BRARMAEEXAEERG A
services to the Group or to the parent of the AR EEEREKE RS-
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The useful life of the intangible asset of
the Group is 20 years.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments and
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentive
received from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
January 2018)” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPP1”) on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

24 FEEHHERHBE @

RERHMWEMEE ( (BB BRE
A|) FOKBEBTITE=-FTE—NE—H—
HEEAZEE) @

B E
TRMEESRTEOEETREFENT :

BEBHKASRZ T AEZE (BEFELTA)
i S A TS B MR A1~ AN 5% 81 5 420 8 S AR AR
FATESRMEE:

s REERATRMEENEMENRS
MENEGREATRENEREE-

e EREBEENANKINBERMEL
MRS REAERINAS MAREER
R EYFIS o

BHERANI R EREERRERER
MEEAE SRR RERE - BEEER
IEFERR BRI SURER - RIBER AR A
o

BEARBEFAECEZEKRENECHEE
(BT H)

fisiim B A TR EMEHE - AEEF IR AR EE
FFAEMEEKETEERIRE

s REERAZREENURANAR
MERKESREENEHRAHH
BOTREE-

s SRMEEMBDKRFNFERHEL
MRS REBMAERINAERAREE
R B S o



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments) (continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and loans
and receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/\#F+ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the statement of
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans or
administrative expenses for receivables.

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

24 FEEHHERHBE @

REREMEMEE ( (BB FETE
Al) #3985 E TR =-_ZFE—N\F—HF—H
ZAEAZBE) @

BB E (&)
BRARBEFABENERHEE (1)
BRARBEFABENESBEENRT MR
RIRAR fﬁk%,@ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ“aﬁ
RBERAZI AHEMKEREE MFA
REEaHE @wfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ ERR
BEZHTEEZSSHEERNOTMR
BA B ZEREHFERE T [HRA
RRZT—NF—A—BZAER) T
B BUR FERR 0

ERMEERGNTA (BEREEER) $F39
7JTH’J1I7K1¢E¢E’\\%M§EEE@?S B8 R 4G e
REEERANBESABRENEREE-

EAREWRIE

B K e YR IR T B (B 5E 3 AT B E N KRR
RN ERTIGHRENINTESREE -
RAER  BRAEERRABRAN XX
RESHAR AR DR E B AR & - B SRR
MRt E TR REM B ESOEE Y BRE
%Wf%ﬂ?%ﬁ-%“mgﬁiﬁ$°?
BRAME#EHEIABRRANE IR

o BEEENBEN B R AR %Ez
B B 75 PR AR S B R IR O TT R P 3% ©



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and notes receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

24 FEEHHERHBE @

cREERE ( (BEREHER)D %39
WETR=-_BE—N\E—A—HZAEH
ZBER)

R 5 AR AR B
TIZEEK AT RN EREEM S A5&E
BABSBETHESEENEANEREER
AHFHEENTEANEREERSTAE
BE-WASEER - BEBTHNEHE
EXRARENERETRHE AT mEANE
LY eER—AEEUEERREFENS
B E E A GFETRVE - o B R R RV E BB
BEECHERIFERERANEETRE
RBEE T ©

ERERAREBRSENREENRAS
BAMGFRERE (TEERELMNARNRE
EE1E) MEME ZFNEZRTE - BEhRK
RenERERSREERAERNE (B
R TERR T EABRAME) 38 -

BERASREBEABRERIEN BES
BERSRAER N SR AEERZE R
MARE SR AN XS ERERS
BHARRRSRELTHRONE - BERK
FE W R IR M AT AR R B I BER E AR BE
RBERKE mEHBERnIC2RAEE
EARE BRI -

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T

123



124

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/\#F+ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps

Revenue from the sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps is
recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customers, generally upon delivery of the
goods.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award plan for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. Further details are given in note 27 and note
29 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/\#F+ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements arising from the judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@)

Impairment of non-current assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

The recoverable amounts of the non-current asset of
the Group has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by management. The assumption that has
the most significant impact on the determination of the
recoverable amount of its assets is the discount rate. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
as at 31 December 2018 was 22%.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2018 was RMB557,087,000 (2017: RMB531,212,000).
Further details are contained in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and notes
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate expected
credit losses ("ECLs”) for trade and notes receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, customer type and rating,
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade and notes receivables is disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or management will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December
2018 was RMB803,778,000 (2017: RMB726,532,000).
Further details are contained in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

3. EAREHERMAFT @

fE st T HEE M @

(d)

(%)

HELBRENE BRLBERR R
BHEEEE CHOEBMEFET—
HEZNGGF -BHREEBENSR
BRI R FRR B AN R - AR (B
B L (= B R IR AR B M B B AL HY
BRI EEEERTIEPRBERNE
BRENBR -FHEAEERKESK
REEERENEREEERERRN
A 75 B RL 199 57

VI - B KRR O] A 4 R
AEBEEREETEME HEKRK
HEREF A ERTFHREETES
F ez B TR IBEUEE RIDaE
HME - -BEEIENERAIFERE
BB A4S 52 M 8 5E o 30 7] gk A £ 4iT
Bl &5 5 B IR 1T B HR R E
A ERNE & A A FHR A
HETFHE  BRERIZINTERR -
S8 B 8 S5 R B AT 3R B 2R JE OR
HEHEREEE - N_E—N\F+=
A=+—HB %% WEIZEDK
H& %A ARS03,778,0007T (=F
—t%F: AR¥726,532,0007T) ° #E—
RN RFTHMIFE3 ©
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFHEHR
For management purposes, the Group is organised into one REER RNEBEDEBK—EE %5
single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and B -EIAEMBEET MY ERERHD
sale of linen yarns. Management reviews the consolidated RAEEERELRE RHEAEBERIRE
results when making decisions about allocating resources SEHAMEE At AEEVEZS D
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no BB AT o

segment analysis is presented.

Geographical information HEE R
(@)  Revenue from external customers @ REINBEFKA
An analysis of the Group’s geographical information on TRENEAEBRBE_ZT—N\F
revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer TZA=T—RIEFERTFAEN
locations for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set 2o m [ AR A B 33 B KL
out in the following table: 1 :
Revenue from
external customers
KEIMBEF KA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Mainland China LCNES 470,690 387,135
European Union X B2 307,854 251,705
Non-European Union JE R BE B 467,099 385,122
1,245,643 1,023,962
(b)  Non-current assets b) FERBEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Mainland China AR K B 780,140 799,555
Ethiopia BREMRLDE 118,423 13,155

898,563 812,710
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

The non-current asset information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group's
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the sales value of linen yarn,
hemp yarn and scraps, net of sales tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps and
payment is generally due within 30 to 150 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers, other
income and gains is as follows:

Type of goods EmER
Sales of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps

WA TR

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period was RMB6,595,000.

4.

SHE G ~ T KA K B w4

RE-BHEENE S

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

BEITER @

B E R (@
EXFECHEREEBNIERDEEE
BEREE (e TAENELEHBEEER
SN FTRRINLE o

ERFEEFNER
REZ-ZE—\Ft+_-_A=1+—HILFE"
WEME —FFPETAHEERAGRERE R
WAT0%S A E (ZF—+F ) o

WA Hitl =R Bs

BEEALWA (JRENAEE & E£58) 5 i
W TEAMY RERMNEEEE Sk
HER RN EREENIIRRE - BHUE
ERRHRfA - TEARMA & EER 2R
BREBEEEERM1E30E150B RN
R REEBENKIE-

EFPEHWA - Ef s k155 29D
T

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥MT T ARKETT
1,245,643 1,023,962
1,245,643 1,023,962

iR Mt ASRE BV S LB ENRA B A
R #6,595,0007T °
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continuedy 5. WA - = R B3 a0

142

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T
Other income Hi iz
Bank interest income RITH EHA 1,044 899
Government grants K 48 Bh 2,501 24,135
Foreign exchange gains, net HINEE L 55 % BE 19,235 =
Others HAfb 1,528 541
24,308 25,575
FINANCE COSTS 5F %5 A 2K
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T
Interest on bank loans IRITEREFE 26,392 25,351
Less: interest capitalised B AREFR (4,872) (7,639)
21,520 17,712
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Amortisation of other intangible assets

Research and development (“R&D")
expenses

Minimum lease payments under operating
leases:

Land and buildings

Auditors” remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration):

Wages, salaries and other benefits

Pension scheme contributions

Equity-settled share award expense

Equity-settled share option expense

Foreign exchange differences, net

Fair value loss on derivative instruments
— transactions not qualifying as hedges

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment of inventories

Provision/(reversal of provision) for
impairment of trade receivables

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

7. BRBADER (EE)

AEBEBRBANGN, (BR)RAE, (G

A) THIBIHEFH

HEFERAN

e

£ A B TR SRR
H A 8 8 B 5

g k% ([H13 ) s

REEERETHRIEEENR:

T REF

= E BB =

BERMNHAX (BREZER
REITHRASZHM)

TE #HahEMEF
RN FT IR

VAME 25 45 B R 17 2R B I 2
UARE a1 A5 B R AR B S

SNEE R - 3R

TETAMREBEER
—TEEREHRNRS

HEWE BE R
RENER

EOEERE

FEUE B RFUREE R,
(BEEmE)

LU DN

RITHB WA

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
987,762 907,694
71,424 60,717
1,814 1,446
586 536
13,052 6,851
1,689 1,745
1,800 1,800
168,986 157,354
11,270 10,435
3,567 -

- 195
183,823 167,984
(19,235) 28,894
3,438 7,002
405 730
(1,179) (4,540)
412 (312)
21,520 17,712
(1,044) (899)
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S 8. EERBRSTHRAEEM

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FR-BEBELTRE BB CRRHEHRD 5
383(1)@) (b) (ORMOEAE (AR (KEE
EFmER) ) F2RBEBENES &S

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of TIRAE BT :
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Fees e 437 437
Other emoluments: HibE< :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEEREYAS 3,600 3,700
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHE K 123 111
4,160 4,248
(@) Independent non-executive directors @ BIEHTESE

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FAMBLIFATEEXNHNES I

during the year were as follows: e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Mr. Lau Ying Kit Bl kE 125 125
Mr. Yan Jianmiao B A 104 104
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE 104 104
333 333
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRIEENBLIERITESTHEAM

independent non-executive directors during the year
(2017: Nil).
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

8. EERBSITHAEHFM W

Executive directors, non-executive director and (b) FITES FFPTESRESTH

the chief executive

2018

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming*
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen
Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

WITES
EHERR s A
ILEBERSEE
SRE X L
LB L

FRTES
BEERE

AE
—E-N\E§
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
He EZRE  BARLHE
we EMFI= R g0 Pk

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR ARBTR AR%®T:R

- 1,500 41 1,541
- 750 41 791
- 750 41 791
- 600 - 600
- 3,600 123 3,723
104 - - 104

104 - - 104
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S 8. EERBEITHRAEHM @
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and (b) FITES FFPTESRESTH
the chief executive (continued) AE (@)
2017 —E—tF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
Fe 2Kk BASFE
e EWH = R HioNas

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARE®ETT ARETRT AREBTE

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ren Weiming* EHEBRSE A+ - 1,500 37 1,537
Mr. Shen Yueming LR ST - 850 37 887
Mr. Zhang Hongwen SR E X5 A = 750 37 787
Ms. Shen Hong TE R+ - 600 - 600
- 3,700 111 3,811
Non-executive director EMITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BTERE 104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104 3,700 111 3,915
& Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as an executive director of < FRA LR FHTEFLFH#HE
the Company, is also the chief executive officer of the A TFERR FTIEARE
Company.
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Notes

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2017: four) directors including the chief executive, details

of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details

of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2017:

one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

e 2R EYH G
f& 10 S2 B AT &I (A7 3£29)
EIREHEIER

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Share award plan (note 29)
Pension scheme contributions

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

LEEEHMES

FRN LEEmTMEERBENE (=%
—tF OR)EF ETFEBEERSTERA
8 HHEMFEEHN EXMES - FAR 1T
—HB(ZE2—tF: —R)FARRAESFH&K
=ITBABN RS MESNFMFEN
T

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
1,299 1,298

59 -

16 16

1,374 1,314

RN A THENIFES MIFRSITHRA
B MES ABMT

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7 21,500,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the
directors and chief executive, or any of the non-director and
non-chief executive, highest paid employees waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration (2017: Nil). None of the directors
and the chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-
chief executive, highest paid employees received any payment
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017: Nil).

REBEEZZE—N\F+=-A=+—HILFE"
BEEERRSTRABRIMAEES LI
R TBA BN &= HIHE S MEXRER
BEMBMHN(—Z—+F &) BEEEL
BT ABREREESE RIEERITHRA
B == 3 B B B 1 52 B U ER(E (A I8 A
% 3| E pn AR E B sk A I A & B RS 1 5 42
B EEEMEE (S —+F &)
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

10. INCOME TAX

Major components of the Group’s income tax expense/(credit)

for the year are as follows:

Current — Mainland China

— Charge for the year

— Overprovision in respect of prior years
Current — Hong Kong

— Charge for the year

— Overprovision in respect of prior years
Current — Italy

— Charge for the year
Deferred (note 17)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year

10. Fif8#®i

AEBRFRANFEHAS (Ee) X2

EEWMAT:

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT

BV ER AR B K e
—FARAZH 12,429 13,232
—BAFERERE (105) =

BIER— &5

—FRZ N 1,849 1,089
—BEFERERE (423) -

BNER — E KA
—FARAZH 1,245 187
B (H15E17) 13,962 (18,230)
FAMBERH (ER)BE 28,957 (3,722)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which was approved and became effective on 1 January
2008, the provision for current income tax of Mainland
China has been based on a statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits of the Company for the year except
for Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhaosu Jindi”) and
Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinlainuo”),
two indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.
Zhaosu Jindi is engaged in the preliminary processing of
agricultural products and is exempted from PRC income
tax. Also, Zhejiang Jinlainuo obtained the High-new
Technology Certificate for the years from 2017 to 2020
and was entitled to a tax rate of 15%.
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10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2018 K= %

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (iii)
of 8.25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong up to HK$2 million. And the assessable

profits over HK$2 million are subject to a tax rate of

16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group (iv)
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 28.82%, which

comprises the Italy Corporate Income Tax at 24% and the

Italy Regional Income Tax at 4.82%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

Profit/(loss) before tax BRELREF S (BE)
Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25% ¥ F #925%7%0 & 5 & HUFi 18
Effect of different/beneficial tax rates N[A /B =i R 2

Overprovision in respect of prior years 87t 7 £ {828 5

Income not subject to tax N R A U &

Tax losses utilised from prior years PRBEFERIAEE
Tax losses not recognised ANERE T IEE 18
Expenses not deductible for tax OLIEIE:0] 5

Tax credit arising from additional
deduction of R&D expenditures of IR EALMFIBK R
a PRC subsidiary

Accrual/(Reversal) of withholding

tax liability

EMRERER S (BRE)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year ~FRFHIEL (K& ) B58

Bt 5 S A B

—NF+-HA=+—H

10. Fi8%H =0

EANGHEREBEEANEZ2ES
7 TC{h 5T FE SR 0 FIl A 8.25%F% K 5t
IRE A o HBEI2 B B B T A FE R B s
JEIZ16.5%M B R GF

BIE B AR B RE  NEE AR
28.82% R KBMFTIS T & BIFIK
24%MREFTHEMBERF B EMBH &
1£4.82%T 5T HE B AF &5
o

BA DT R E A B KB A R 7Y
AAEEERAZERXAEEAR

— B BB /B8 2~ R A 3% B S N ET

Bﬁmu/mﬂa’ﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬂi B R
—v—u #E’ﬁﬂﬁsﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ—l—

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

132,144 (3,100)

33,036 (775)

(1,463) (558)

(528) -

(2,023) (1,600)

- (327)

126 -

1,495 3,122

(2,374) (742)

688 (2,842)

28,957 (3,722)
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK6.0 cents
(2017: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share

At a meeting of the board of directors held on 22 March
2019, the payment of a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per
ordinary share totalling approximately RMB33,103,000 was
recommended for the year ended 31 December 2018, which
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 610,278,000 (2017: 615,060,000) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the shares purchased by
the Trustee during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings/(loss) per share amount
is based on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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12.

R AHR S — I RA6.08
—E—+F:2.081L)

3=t
2018 2017
—g-N\EF  —EFLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR
33,103 10,527

R-ZEBE—NFE=A -+ -_BRTHARTNE
Eegnlt EFEEBREHE_ZT N
FH+ A=+ HALFEREBRESRE
6.0/l - & 4 AR ®33,103,0007T -
BEAARREREERERT A S EHE
% HAER -

BAREBRREREEAEBRLER
BF,(&HE)
BREAZF (BB BHRET AR
BRESEEARGFRGS, (EE) R
FABEEITEBRINEFHE610,278,000
f% ( ZZ—+%:615,060,0008% ) 5t5 W E
EHFABRUARMFEFAZTABENRS -

FREERN, (BR)SBEDREGQA
LTERESRSE ARGEFRERN, (EE)
A8 S ERE AT BRI F
ANEETERREE (Rt EEBRERER
PIEMRERR) ARBREMEFTELE
B RETER A RS T RRREER
TTEE BRI 2



12.

Notes to Financial Statements

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO  12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZF—/\#F+=-H=4+—H

BAREEREZEREAEBREER
R (EBE) @

FREAREBRN,(BE)WFETR

are based on: J/(UR N
2018 2017
—2-N\F —FtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Earnings/(loss) attributable to ordinary FA1ES :@ﬁi%%ﬁi@ﬂm
equity holders of the parent used in BRBEIEBREDRTAA
the basic earnings per share calculation L BA, (EE) 102,006 (3,132)
Number of shares
1 8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
000 ‘000
TR T
Shares e
Weighted average number of ordinary RIET EERERERT W
shares in issue during the year used in FABEITERRINE TR
the basic earnings per share calculation 610,278 615,060
Effect of dilution — weighted average e E L ERnE T
number of ordinary shares:
Share options b e 16,250 16,250
Share award plan f& 15 L2 Eh =t &) 11,837 =
638,365* 631,310
* Because the exercise price of share options is higher than the * HRBIRENTTREZRTE KRG E

market price, the share options were ignored in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share. Therefore, the diluted earnings
per share amount is based on the earnings for the year of
RMB102,006,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 622,115,000 in issue during the year.

R EEF I ERAEERIE - F it &
FRIE B FI 9 B RE TS 1 BEE B FIN BB
102,006,0007T % F A B #77 Z B2 EF
8(622,115,0000% 1 E -
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2018

At31 December 2017 and RZZE—t%
at 1 January 2018: TZAZT-HER
“T-\§-HF-R:
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2018, net of R-E-\F—f—-A8:
accumulated depreciation N 25t E
Additions NE
Depreciation provided ERRERE
during the year
Transfers B
Disposals ek 5
Exchange realignment EREE
At 31 December 2018, net of R-E-\F
accumulated depreciation TZA=T-B"
NB R E
At31 December 2018: RZF-N\F
t=ZB=t+-R:
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
Net carrying amount REFE

152 2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

13. X BERRE
—E-N\F+=A=t—H

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction

buildings Machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BER HENE

BEY BE  HAZRE RE %% EREIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR%®Tr ARETR AR®TR AR%®Tn ARETR
364,757 685,301 94,430 10,626 19,780 83,490 1,258,384
(101,328) (369,950) (37,239) (8,740) (14,595) - (531,852)
263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532
263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532
205 679 4,046 136 2,687 154,832 162,585
(15,981) (40,331) (10,963) (1,540) (2,009 - (70,824)
28,326 18,732 21,285 206 1,918 (70,467) -
(278) (142) (50) (13) - (14,033) (14,516)
- 1 - - - - 1
275,701 294,290 71,509 675 7781 153,822 803,778
391,982 703,113 119,345 10,847 24,385 153,822 1,403,494
(116,281) (408,823) (47,836) (10,172) (16,604) - (599,716)
275,701 294,290 71,509 675 7,781 153,822 803,778
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As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016 and
at 1 January 2017:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation provided

during the year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017, net of
accumulated depreciation
At31 December 2017:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

13. M¥E BERRZE @
—e—tF#+=A=+—H

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BER HEME
BEN T N RE £ EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tr AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
RZE—RF
+-A=+-Bk
“E—+tE-f-H:
KA 277,023 599,553 62,799 10,335 16,371 127,446 1,093,527
2itHE (90,236) (352,653) (29,896) (8,102) (11,103) = (491,990)
EHFE 186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
W_E—+&—HF—-H"
B EE 186,787 246,900 32,903 2,233 5,268 127,446 601,537
NE 3,987 7,692 3,674 294 3,408 170,340 189,395
FRTERE
(11,992) (36,482) (7,512) (640) (3,491) = (60,117)
B 85,969 99,470 28,857 - - (214,296) -
te (1322) (2,233) (731) (1) = = (4,287)
B A = 4 = = = = 4
R-E—+F
+-A=+-8"
MK 23T E 263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532
R_E—+F
+-fA=1-B:
KA 364,757 685,301 94,430 10,626 19,780 83,490 1,258,384
2iHE (101,328) (369,950) (37,239) (8,740) (14,595) - (531,852)
EHFE 263,429 315,351 57,191 1,886 5,185 83,490 726,532

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s property, plant and

equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB155,954,000 (2017: RMB191,736,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in notes 25(i)

and 25(ii).

AN BT EE25() R25(i)FTE R =T — J\F
TZA=F+—HB AEEEEFHEHAR
#155,954,000c (Z T —tF : AR
191,736,00070) I3 - S MR E T&
B EAAREEERIRITERNER-
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. BEYZE

2018 2017

AN —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HNKRESE 7,529 8,129
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (600) (600)
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HBNEREEHE 6,929 7,529

The Group's investment properties are commercial properties
in Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of one class of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the
nature, characteristics and risks of the property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2018
based on valuations performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset
Assessment Limited Corporation, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB21,089,000. Each year, the Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decide,
after approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of
the Group’s investment properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYXE w
Fair value hierarchy PABEEREE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRETNEEREMENAALBETES
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: ARBRTE -

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2018 using
RAUTEER=Z-N\E+=-A=+—-H

ETNOABENE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

RERBTE BATHE EXTUEE

HHRE BWAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%—F) (%=FE) (B=8) wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tn AR¥®Tn AR¥Tx

Recurring fair value measurement for:  4&XE MR R EET £
Commercial properties [EliikZE S - - 21,089 21,089

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2017 using
HKRANATEBER=Z—tF+=-A=1+—H

EITHAAEETE
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

RiERMSE BRUBER EATAEHE

HR(E BAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(8—FE) €l =) (B=E) st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARE®ETT ARETT ARETE

Recurring fair value measurement for: #& B A R EE £ :
Commercial properties k2 ES - - 20,854 20,854
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3. (2017: Nil)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

REWE w0

ARBEERERE @

FRN AABEFEEE—EAEF_EZH
BEEE TEEAF—ElaE_EE L
ZE—FE)o

NTREENELEMBNGEETEREE
WAERBE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fEES% BEATAUBEBAE EE W METI9H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Shanghai Commercial Discounted Estimated rental value RMB222 RMB222
Property | cash flow method (per sq. m. and per month)
LFEERYE REeREBWBIE et eEE AR®2227T AR#2227T
(B¥HAREA)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
HeER (8F)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REAZEEX &= L
Discount rate 3.35% 4.25%

R
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques

fEERE
Shanghai Commercial Discounted
Property Il cash flow method
EEEmAnmEl REREFTE
Jiaxing Commercial Discounted
Property cash flow method
REBAYME ReREFBRE

Notes to Financial Statements
BF I R AR MY EE
As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H
14. REVEFmw
NABEEFRREE @
Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
BEAFUBEHGAE EERMEFIH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Estimated rental value RMB235 RMB235
(per sq. m. and per month)
st HEEE ARM235T  AR¥2357T
(BFHARER)
Mgk (8F) 3%-5% 3%-5%
Rent growth (p.a.)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REZEER i i
Discount rate 3.35% 4.25%
Pri| &
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
Estimated rental value RMB65 RMB63
(per sq. m. and per month)
fEtHEEE ARM657T AR¥637T
(8FHAREEA)
Rent growth (p.a.) Nil Nil
HeEK (85F) i =
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
RHZ=EX i 2
Discount rate 6.90% 6.90%

730 %
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As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/\#F+ZA=+—H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

14. REVE )

RABEEFREE @
BRERECREFHT L ARBENVKBEE
EmHARREEENMNEREE (B
REBEXIKWER) VRBETMH &
E/X/ﬁ&ﬁ%@%ﬁé 5 ) — $‘$‘£ﬁ§/m§mi§
A MISITENFTREEXEANBARSRE
LA@EEE_LE@%{F%%%E’JH& S IRE R
WHRREEEBHREATNRARFTERE-

HEREMFERERRAMA LA AE
R Tyl SR  HAEHERBEE
B EZHBREEHRE - BENHER
BXMI51TR (BMERRNET)XE-E
HE S RERARENB/REE - T aikE H
X WERIEL HERE REER REMN
ReERREMSENERERME Z—
AR TE R SRR - E R TR R A TEOR ER
mRERNSmEERT S8 SETHR-



15.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Cost:
At beginning of year
Additions

At end of year

Accumulated amortisation:
At beginning of year
Charge for the year

At end of year

Carrying amount at end of year
Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB58,908,000 (2017: RMB42,843,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in notes 25(i)

and 25(ii).

Lease prepayments represent costs paid to the PRC land bureau
for obtaining land use rights in respect of land located in
Mainland China with a lease period of 50 years when granted.

DN,

1
NE

FR

RETH#H:

£

FAX

FR

FREMD R
AEATAM R HE M
H b FEUCIR H) R B RE

FERBE D

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

15. T EEFENSFHE

2018 2017
—g-N\EF  —EFLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARETR
80,500 80,500

40 -

80,540 80,500
(14,031) (12,585)
(1,814) (1,446)
(15,845) (14,031)
64,695 66,469
(1,633) (1,632)
63,062 64,837

SANHT 253 K25 TR R — N\ &
+ZA=+—RA AEEFR@EIFEHA
R #58,908,0000t (ZZE—+tF : AR
42,843,00070) W T EFENHIBE T4
O AEARNEEERBITERNER

M EIE IR LS A AP B £ 3 72 B S5 AR

156070 B R B ) 3 9 - 3 o PR RO AR
R BRENEEHRRS05 -
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As at 31 December 2018

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
31 December 2018

At 1 January 2018,
net of accumulated amortisation
Additions
Disposal
Amortisation provided
during the year

At 31 December 2018,
net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2018:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2017

At 1 January 2017,
net of accumulated amortisation
Additions
Disposal

Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2017,
net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2017:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

R-FE-NF+ZA=1+—H

16. HtWELEE
—E-N\E+=-HA=+—H

Certified
Patents emission
and licences rights Total
H R
SERE RREEME st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥EFTRT AR%®Tx
R=—E—N\F—H—A8"
HIBR R 5T 5 - 5,834 5,834
nE 2,000 - 2,000
& - - -
F NG
- (586) (586)
R-ZT—N\&F
+=B=+—8"
HIBR R 5T 5 2,000 5,248 7,248
R-ZE—\F
+T-RA=+—8:
AR 2,000 9,852 11,852
Rt - (4,604) (4,604)
BREFRE 2,000 5,248 7,248
—ET—+F+-A=+—H
Certified
emission rights
RS U
RMB’000
AREEFIT
R—ZE—tF—H—A8"
kR 2T #SH 8,137
NE _
fanfi= (1,767)
FNEHEERE (536)
RZF—+tF+=—A=+—8"
bR 2T SH 5,834
RZZE—+tF+=-—A=+—8:
BN 9,956
E (4,122)
BRI F =R 5,834



17.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the

Group during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

At 1 January 2017

Deferred tax crediited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2018

ERFABHHERE/
(BAHHERRNR)
BRI (Hit10)

W=E-N\F+=A=t-H

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

17, EEBIR
AEBEREEHRAEERBBERFANEE N
o
EEHEEE:
Depreciation  Loss available Fair value
inexcess ~ for offsetting loss on
Allowance Provision  Elimination of of related  against future derivative
for doubtful for unrealised  depreciation taxable financial
Accruals debts  inventories profits allowance profit instruments Total
RERH LM S (k3
i BBNAE &R ERIAN
BRER RERE  FERE  AERER  BENSE  ERZEER DAEERE aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARBTR ARETr ARETR ARETR
2,299 326 1,172 1,220 619 - 58 5,694
(287) (35) 279) (196) 3,786 7,584 1,692 12,265
2,012 291 893 1,024 4,405 7,584 1,750 17,959
(171) 101 (87) 803 294 (7,584) (890) (7,534)
1,841 392 806 1,827 4,699 - 860 10,425
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

17. EEBIIE @

Deferred tax liabilities: EEHREAE:
Withholding
tax on Fair value Depreciation
undistributed gains on allowance
profits of the derivative in excess
Mainland China financial Unrealised of related
subsidiaries instruments exchange gain depreciation Total
REARE
WEAR g TERE
R TEEF SRIAN AER  BHARRE
wENE  AAEESH B 5 s Hem Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARBFT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZF—tF-H—H 13,645 1,505 = 3,524 18,674
Deferred tax charged/ (credited) o~ FREAHHBREINR/
the consolidated statement of (GtABHHERK)
profit or loss during the year HRIERIA (H17210)
(note 10) (6,595) (1,505) 878 1,257 (5,965)
At31 December 2017 and R-F—+%F
1 January 2018 TZA=+-BR
ZT-N\§-A—H 7,050 - 878 4,781 12,709
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o FRAAHBRERINGE/
the consolidated statement of (GtABHHBERK)
profit or loss during the year WA (Hit10)
(note 10) 4,381 - (878) 2,925 6,428
At31 December 2018 R=Z—N\%F
+=-A=+—H 11,431 - = 7,706 19,137

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings generated after 31 December 2007.

162
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17.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

17.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred

tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017

relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts

— Provision for inventories

— Elimination of unrealised profits

— Accruals

— Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments

— Depreciation in excess of
related depreciation allowance

— Losses available for offsetting against
future taxable profit

EEBIE (@)
EEBEERE @

RIERIZR ETEERAEEREED
REFHABIRAR NG - RIEMEE2HRZ
B AEENRERIEGSHRONMAT

AEBR_ZE—NER_ZT—+F+_8
=T BHERERIBEE TS SIERRE :

31 December

THBRELRETCHABE

—RERREE

—FERE

— R m A

—TRIREH

—TEESRT AN
NRBEERE

—TEBH AR EREN
T8

— FAE 35 B 1R SR BE A
Z k18

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
t=A=+—-HB +Z=H=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREET T
392 291

806 893

1,827 1,024

1,841 2,012

860 1,750

4,699 4,405

- 7,584

10,425 17,959
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

17. EZEHIE @)
EEBEERE @

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETF T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: THSEELNRERIARE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — /1 B3 A FEff & 2 7]
of Mainland China subsidiaries R K g H) Y TR AR (11,431) (7,050)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —EREBLARITEN
related depreciation ok (7,706) (4,781)
— Unrealised exchange gain in ltaly —BRAARBIRIE H e - (878)
(19,137) (12,709)
Deferred tax, net JRFER TE 58 (8,712) 5,250
Reflected in the consolidated statement of 74 G B 76 A S0 3% P9 S Ak -
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets —REFRIBEE 5,596 14,640
— Deferred tax liabilities —IRERIEEE (14,308) (9,390)

As at 31 December 2018, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB376,354,000 at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB340,350,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

18. INVENTORIES 18. 78
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Raw materials JR 1% 362,836 326,175
Work in progress eS8 38,451 37,995
Finished goods BURK i 155,800 167,042
557,087 531,212
As at 31 December 2018, inventories with a carrying amount R-EBE-NF+_A=+—H FHEHEBEAR
of nil (2017: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to secure bank T (ZZ—+4F : AK¥40,000,0007T) B 17
loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25(i). ECTEMR ERAEEERRITERNE

R > QOFF FE253) AT &

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 19. EREZRAREWVEE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E Tt F

+=HA=+—H +=A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Trade receivables U E SRR 234,075 194,552
Notes receivable JE Uk 22 i 61,765 116,589
Impairment DERIEY (725) (926)
295,115 310,215
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

19.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month —EARN

1 to 2 months — & A =rIE A
2 to 3 months A1E A ==& A
Over 3 months =f@AE
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19.

BHREZERREVRERE @
EE—REETEEH0XREISOR BT
BRI P HEEME  ARE N RKIFEBR
72 1) R W (3] 0 FE MR IR - I 5 15 B A ) P
R EERBRERE - SRERETEHE
BB H A £R - PR U B B BRI AT B

AEENRKRERREGRNEAR AL E
8 EA IR R (E

RBERR  AEEHEWEZRFTIZER
B BAIRE BB ERE DT -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
127,962 74,737
46,125 59,856
36,677 40,177
22,586 18,856
233,350 193,626




Notes to Financial Statements

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year nw—H—H
Impairment losses, net (note 7)

Amount written off as uncollectible

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

EEE TR (HiE7)
WORL A R B2 5 B8

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

19. ERESRARERREE @

EWE ZERFREBEREESHNT

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—=E-N\F —ET—+F
+=ZBA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
926 1,238

412 (312)

(613) -

725 926

(BB H|ELER) FIRBETEHE
—E-N\F+ZA=Z+—-BLFENHE
I
REHRSHRORARERELETRED
o AT EEHREEER BEXTIERE
BEBRUEERANZEARES 2 EETH
AEECE FEPEMNEFR ERE
REMEERREZANREEE) MiE
A E R ERREENELER - B%
REINHEEHAISNERBESEE B
AT RAR R B RTINS E KA R
Froe—MRME  MEKEZRIFAMEL—
F R FLAMEH B ARAITIIERR -
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31

December 2018 (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

Expected credit loss rate

Gross carrying amount
(RMB’000)

Expected credit losses
(RMB’000)

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31

December 2017

AR EE AR

BEEEE
(ARETFT)

BRI
(ARETFT)

Current

BN

0.00%

210,296

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 that were not individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired under IAS 39 is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than 1 month past due

1 to 3 months past due

Over 3 months past due
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BE 4 380 5 T A R (E
BH—EAR
BH—EAZE=1EA
BH=E A L

EWRESRAREREE @

(BB REEA) FORKBFTIEZE
—EBE-N\FE+ZA=+—BLEEHNR
B
TREABEBEEESIEEAEERKE S
IR ERARBRA T E R

R-E—N\E+=-A=+—H

Past due
gt

Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months Total

PR —Z HBim
—{@A ={@A ={@EA et
0.00% 1.25% 21.18% 0.31%
16,669 3,918 3,192 234,075
- 49 676 725

(BB ST ER) E39RBTRE_F
—tHF+-A=+—-HRLFENRE
RE (BEEREER) F395RALIF@ERIKE
BRERAEN_-Z—tF+_A=+—HF
WE SRR R TAT :

31 December
2017
—T—+F
+=-—A=+—H
RMB’000
ARBEF T

176,783
9,545
4,672
2,338

193,338
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Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under IAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and notes receivables
approximates to their fair value due to their short term maturity.

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2018, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB33,097,000 (31
December 2017: RMB9,831,000) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB33,097,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB9,831,000).

19.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

EWRESRAREREE @
(BIRREEER]) H3RBEBIHE-Z
—tF+-A=+—HLEFENRE@®
RS B MR E M B UGB R L TR
FEB ZERFPOHIEELNESL -

EAMERRENEYEFERREZZB IR
FER ZFEFEAREARIMNBE
B o IRIBAERS ARREZRBARE (B
REETERD B3R BEFTURFHERERE
BE ARGEEXERZZ(CAEREER
%R A A2 BRI ] -

BRI BEWE SRR EEE
EORESEEEABERES-

YESHAULBINERRE

R-ZE—N\EFE+ZA=+—8 KcEFHH
AETHERSEETHTREMRITERNE
WEE(REEZR]) REASEAAR
#33,097,000 (ZE—tF+ A =+—
H: AR#®92831,0007T) ' A& EENZS
HEFNESZEZER((BEE]) - AQH
BERE AEBDREENRR &ETR -
BREEEZSKEEZRMNENRR B4
CEEEERERCEEZERIEECEERE
NESEFRNEBEMEE - REER &
EEVERBEMERASEEEBNER
BRERATMEME=FHE EEREHL
EEEE - LUHERABEBRENCEESR
BREENENESEREIR -_Z—N\E+=
A=+—BHMEEA%EHARE33,097,000
T(ZE—+FE+-A=+—H: ARK
9,831,0007T ) °
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

19.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
As at 31 December 2018, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB10,745,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB11,384,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC,
the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Notes and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes are not significant.

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2018 (2017: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. AR HERHEMEKRRIE
RECEIVABLES
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
t=-RA=t—H +TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Value added tax recoverable A] U [B] #E B 34,684 40,691
Prepayments SEENE 12,085 8,978
Prepaid land lease payment due R—FRIHPHLHE
within one year TET IR 1,633 1,632
Deposits and other receivables & K b e Wk FR I8 12,302 17,349
60,704 68,650
The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing FRrERREER THEREBREER
and have no fixed terms of repayment. Hj o
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Ft B EREARBE IR E o 5t A Ll 8k
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to B & BRE 2R B BN 4 R A B R MR IR
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. a5
The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other BRI A I - SFE R 50 0 R H At fE
receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short WHIEHERE S EEE AR EERE -

term maturity.
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liabilities: B&E:

Foreign currency forward SMEE B A4
contracts — current —Bn &R

Cross-currency swap YA 30 B 72 2

(i) The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some
of its foreign currency transaction exposures. These currency
forward contracts are not designated as cash flows, fair value
or net investment hedges and are entered into for periods
consistent with foreign currency transaction exposures, generally
from one to twelve months. These contracts will mature within
2019.

(i) In 2018, the Group entered into cross-currency swap

agreements with banks to manage the interest rate and currency
risks. These contracts will mature within 2019.

The derivatives are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2018.
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21. fTE€mIT A

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E§ T F
+=ZBA=+—H +=—RA=+—8H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HraF AR¥ETR ARET T
(i) 414 555
(ir) 3,024 6,447
3,438 7,002

(i) AEBEEAEEERSOEEERSINE
RPRER  ZEEREREHREERR S
nE  AABESFRE L Mal LA
RESNEZZRR - (—RA/—E+=
BA) - ZEFEEHNBN T NFREIH-

iy MZZE-NF AEFRRTILIXE
B M WEEMNR R EERR - ZF
AR T - NFREH-

AN
=



Notes to Financial Statements

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

e RBITES
& B

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Less: Pledged deposits for letter of credits
Pledged deposits for bank loans
Pledged deposits for forward contracts

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY
Denominated in RMB RAREEHE
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE
Denominated in EUR AR TEHE
Denominated in USD AZETTEHE
Denominated in other currencies LA fth E#ETE
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTHH

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

B B LS AR e 17 5K
ERRITEFEMAFR

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

22. BERBESEYUARTERER

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\fF -t
+=B=+—8 +=A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
310,683 224,138
310,683 224,138
(58,775) (50,187)

(10,082) -
BEtRHAA QEENFR - (127)
241,826 173,824
126,019 82,819

4,317 2,483

11,522 16,412

150,387 121,813

18,438 611

310,683 224,138

ARBTABEAABRAEMER R R
BEHRBARER GMNEERERM) Kk (EE-
EEMMIEERRE)  AEEELEERE
BRIEETTINEEBNRITEARE LM AE
b E* -

BT HRRIES B RTERRIEHH 27
BRIt 8 RITEBRDIERFRE R
ERmEOES AEERFZ BT
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

23. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 23. BNEZRARENRE
An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31 RZB-NF+_A=+—H RNKEH
December 2018, based on the payment due date, is as follows: Ao BONENESEREENEERE DN
LU

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
t=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFT
Due within 1 month or on demand — B A AR BN ERKEER 157,645 115,400
Due after T month but within 3 months ~ —1{& A LA1& 18 =1{& A A 2| &5 88,030 62,361
Due after 3 months but within 6 months = 1& A LA {87518 A A E| - 12,022
245,675 189,783
The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. FPRERREERRTAE -RNERESR
The carrying amount of trade and notes payables at the end of N BEREEAZIE - MEME SRR R E

each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to NEENEROSBEEEALEERES-

their short term maturity.
24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HitERNRERFEARE A

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
t=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Contract liabilities EHAaE (i) 24,036 -
Payroll payables e # & 23,997 19,610
Advances from customers BFE#R - 6,595
Accruals IR E A 2,120 3,152
Other payables H At & -t 5K 73,147 64,622
123,300 93,979
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

(i) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1
January 2018 are as follows:

Short-term advances received WERE = 9 57 B 50
from customers
Sale of goods BEmiHE

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end
of each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to
their short term maturity.

24.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

HtEARERARERA @
(i) R=ZFE—N\F+_A=+—HE=ZF—N
F-A—HHAHAGEFBRT:
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F T+
+=—HA=+-—H +=-BA=+—8”
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREBTT
24,036 6,595

PSSR A ERE R AR -RERE B
R BHREHARBIE - SH MmN RIENTE
REANEHSREEAAEERSE-
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25. iTESBTHEE
2018 2017
—B-NE “2—t#
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%)  Maturity ~ RMB'000 (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
BRF=® B A=
(%) AH AR®TR (%) A8 ARETT
Current BN
Secured bank loans BEBRTER 2.48 - 5.05 2019 267,056 1.49-4.57 2018 334,221
Unsecured bank loans ERBRTER 2.55 - 5.22 2019 241,928 2.08-4.70 2018 185,340
Subtotal N 508,984 519,561
Non-current FEENH
Secured bank loans BHRABRTER 4.28 2021 50,400 4.28 2021 75,600
Total st 559,384 595,161
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
t=RA=+-B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Analysed into: PRl
Bank loans repayable: JEERBITER:
Within one year —F R 508,984 519,561
In the second year F_F 25,200 25,200
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFRAFT (BEEEMF) 25,200 50,400
559,384 595,161
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB267,056,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB80,992,000 (2017: RMB112,775,000), RMB43,806,000
(2017: RMB27,421,000) and Nil (2017: RMB40,000,000),

respectively.

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB50,400,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group with carrying amounts of
RMB74,962,000 (2017: RMB78,961,000) and RMB15,102,000
(2017: RMB15,422,000), respectively.

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank loans
of the Group approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying
amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of the
Group approximates to their fair value due to their floating
interest rate.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

SFEHRITEE @

BsE:

(i)

(ii)

R-ZB—N\E+-A=+—H BRHELHE
B ANER267,056,0007T 79 Bl EA 5T B8R 17
EFURE 285 B A A R%80,992,000
T (ZF—tF: AR¥112,775,0007T) *
AR #43,806,0007T (ZZ—+HF : AR
27,421,000L) RE(ZZ—+F: AR
40,000,0007T) B0 & T3 R R a&
T EEANRIERFEERA-

R-Z—NE+-_A=+—B FE@ES
%5 N R#50,400,0007C & 3E BN BA 51 &
BITEELASEEASEIIAAR
#74,962,000t (Z T —EF: AR
78,961,0007z) & A R #15,102,0007t (=
T—tF: ARK15,422,00070) & T
% BELERER LA EBEMNKBEER
j:qio

HAREHARE  AAKENHRFT BRITE
ROEESEEEARBERES-

FEENERGT BRTTEEMN AR EERERNA
BEUGK  EERRRFSGFHN T AN
BITMEFRBEHRRRSREAE - R =
E-N\Ft+-_A=1+—B KAEEXRFH
BRITEENTENRBREFIE/LTE
RREE BN E AEEMIEHE S
RITEFANDFTBN RS WERAS
MEAAAEEMRS-
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Authorised: EE
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
+=-B=+-—H +-A=+—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BHEE k2 R E £8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRo.01BITEER 3,000,000,000 30,000  3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
ZE-Nf+ZA=t-H “Z—tFtZA=1+-A
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R EE &8 B el
HK$000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TEr AR¥TR TET ARETR
(%6) (%fE)
At the beginning and the end RENEELR
629,678,000 6,297 6,329 629,678,000 6,297 6,329

of the year
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Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees, suppliers, customers, agents,
partners or advisers of or contractors of the Group in the
Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 15
November 2006 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$0.01 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three
years and ends on a date which is not later than four years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share.

27/

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

BB IR T &

AARRA—EERETS ([5181]) - R
UAKEEBAEHERMNAERSEA
REMBREEMR -FAEWAERZEA
BREALRFER (BERBILIFNTESR) R
BERARAMBARNASEEMES
HER &P I B BRI EEs-
AEAZETERET-ATRARES K
FWBUHKERT BRI A ZBEF 58
pile

RBFT IR AR B RITRBREN R
BB BERITERESER AR REMA
REE BTN M10% - RIFFHEINERA
B2 EABERNBERENA TETHRS
BHEE  REFR+—EAREATAER
AR BRMEA A B BITRO 1% - &K i
HRBULR M BB AR R S IR IR A& Bt
fE

RHBRENENTRIZZ BHE21AR
BARAXNBERES £0.0ETEMR -
BREMBRENTEMAESRRE YR —
E-FRBHEMG ARTERREER
1 B HEE PN S AE] B 7kt 81 fE TR A HIR
IE (ARBEERE) -

BRETFERESET  HTEER T
FEMNERSE  ((NEEEREBBARQ A
AR PABS X BT RO YT MR ¢ (i) EBE IR 2 A #RT
FEZR 5 B AR Bl (0 A B 22 B 89 F 15 e
B RGixpmEE -
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BRETE W
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BB AR A A T A AR AR B R AR K
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. g EREMER -
The following share options were outstanding under the FAFEIETHARITENERENT

Scheme during the year:

2018
—E-N\F

Exercise price Number
HK$ of options
per share 000
TEE BREZE
BRET T4
At 1 January m—H—H 2.00 16,250
Forfeited R -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 16,250
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RS BAIR M ARTTE B AR R 1T B B AT

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HAGOR

Number
of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHER TEE* 1TEH
000 HK$ per share
T BRET
4,875 2.0 24/2/2016-23/8/2019
—E-RFZAZTMBEE_ZE-AFNAZ=+=H
11,375 2.0 24/8/2017-23/8/2019
TE—tFNAZTHRBEE=ZE-AFNAZT=H
16,250
& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * TEHETTHAR - BITALIR B 2 2 ] R 2K M1 57
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in BB 50 T BRESTTIEE
the Company’s share capital. RIEL FE

180 2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£



27/

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil), of which the Group recognised
no share option expense (2017: RMB195,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

27. BBREFTE w
REBE—_ZE—N\E+-A=1t—BILFEHK
ERPERE (S —+F &) HpALE
BEREE2—_FE—N\F+_A=+—HItFE
BRAMEERERAY (ZE—tF: AR
195,0007T) °

ERNH ARG EERRENRAEEIR
B BHANA - EABL G EREER
B BB AR ) AR R MR A - TR DI PR
BB AE

Share options

granted on

24 August 2015

R=-Z-—-HF

NA=+@WAH

REWBERE

Dividend yield (%) AR B K (%) 5.86
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) RERE (FRET) 1.28
Historical volatility (%) JFE 5208 18 (%) 41.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 2 B B 2K (%) 0.96
Expected life of options (year) BR8] (F) 4.00
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) g FIERE (FRETT) 1.47

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements, the Company had no
share options exercised under the Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
16,250,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 16,250,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of RMB28,477,000 (before issue
expenses).

BRERAFHANIREBE=FNELH

T8 HI R e 2 R PR S ¢ 0 m] BUR AR SR AE BV R
ROMEERGERLEAR -

RIERRENEHIA BRI ELERL
ARB W EERIBFT BIITEARERAE -

R 5 AR - 2N A &1 16,250,00017 1R K &

B M ARITERBRE - EARRRRITEARLE
BT BEITERRITENBREE S
716,250,000 AN~ A REIN E AR R A R
28,477,0007CRBIMNE AR (HIBREEITHAZAL) ©
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

28. TREASURY SHARES

31 December 2018

28.

EFRA

31 December 2017

“E-\F+=A=t-8H “E—+tF&+tZA=1+—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
ROEE ¢ L ! i

HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
FET ARETR TAET ARETR
(%6) (%8)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (BE%Z) (8E%) (8E%)
At the beginning i 19,400,000 22,160 19,508 - - =
Repurchase of shares el ) - - - 19,400,000 22,160 19,508
At the end RER 19,400,000 22,160 19,508 19,400,000 22,160 19,508

On 26 August 2016, the Company adopted a share award
plan, which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (the “Share Award Plan”). The board of
directors may, at their discretion, grants shares of the Company
to eligible participants. The Company has appointed a trustee
for administration of the Share Award Plan (the “Trustee”).
The principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and
holding the Company’s shares for the Share Award Plan for
the benefit of the Company’s award holders. The Company’s
shares will be purchased by the Trustee in the market with cash
paid by the Company and held in the trust for relevant award
holders until such shares are vested in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Award Plan. Upon vesting, the Trustee
shall either transfer the vested awarded shares at no cost to
such award holders or sell the vested awarded shares at the
then prevailing market price by way of market order and remit
the net proceeds to the award holders in accordance with
the direction given by such award holders. The total number
of the Company’s shares purchased by the Trustee under the
Share Award Plan will not exceed 5% of the total issued shares
of the Company at the beginning of the fiscal year. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Trustee purchased
19,400,000 shares of the Company at a total consideration of
approximately RMB19,508,000. At the end of the reporting
period, 19,370,000 shares were granted under the Share Award
Plan.
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SRAIRERAERZEARKARBRG -
ARARBEZEZFTA(ZTADERRS
HEEE - XTEANEZEF T AARQFE
BiE AN SRR G R SERREE
AABRRGD o N A B ZBRAD B HZFEART
B EERARRSTNZREBANAMETES
ABEEREREAMBE EEBERD
RIERD BE T EEX T ARB AL - N &
Bk L ABARBZERZE AELNE
T~ BERBZEERD R EEE T ZER
BAEAN MR mE LRERRITZTESR
HEDREZ BERG WA ATSRIEF5EE
HFEBFEA - RBBRFEY AR
B SR ET I A AR A R RN BEE T
SEBARRAREBITRGBENS% - EH =
T tF+_AZFTHLEFE FFEA
LAEREL ARE19,508,000 T AR A A
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Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE AWARD PLAN

On 25 May 2018, the Board (including all independent
non-executive Directors), based on the recommendation
of the remuneration committee, resolved to grant a total of
19,370,000 Awarded Shares, which have been acquired by
the Trustee from the open market by using the Company’s
internal resources, to 92 employees who were eligible persons
(“Grantees”).

The 19,370,000 awarded shares to be granted to the Grantees
represented (i) nearly 3.08% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the grant date; and (ii) the value of
approximately RMB19,508,000 based on the calculation of the
shares purchase records.

1,010,000 of 19,370,000 awarded shares were granted to 37
Grantees who were employees and have served the Group
for 30 years or more, or each of employee couples who have
served the Group for 30 years or more. These nearly 1 million
awarded shares will be vested on the first anniversary upon the
grant date.

30% of 18,360,000 of 19,370,000 awarded shares shall vest on
the first anniversary upon the grant date and the other 30% and
40% shares shall vest on the second and third anniversaries
upon the grant date respectively.

Moreover, these 18,360,000 awarded shares shall be vested
or not depending on two requirements: the Group’s net profit
target and personnel annual performance evaluation. For the
net profit target, the Group’s audited net profit should reach
RMB100 million in 2019, RMB150 million in 2020, and
RMB200 million in 2021. If the Group missed target in year
one, the 30% shares awarded cannot vest only if the Group
meets the target in next year. And if the Group continuously
misses the target in year two, the shares of year one will
no longer be vested. As for the personnel evaluation, the
Grantees shall receive 100% awarded shares for that year if the
evaluation result is “Pass” and receive 75% or 50% awarded
shares for “Need Improvements” and “Fail”.

29.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

% 10 s By 5t Bl
W_ZE—N\FRA-+HB EFE (82K
EERBVUIINTES) REFHEE 2 2 #
BEZ ZAANEBAERALZESR
([FZ AT HA $£19,370,0000% 22 B §%
D ZERBROBAITAERELARRZA
HERR AR S £ -

mAR AR 2 %519,370,0000% 22 B B 19
HEROAARRENL B2 B B8ITRA
i3.08% : K(i)E1E 49 A R #19,508,0007T
(KEBERHOBELSTE)

19,370,0000% 22 Bh A% 15 # #91,010,0000% 1%
FI7TEEFRAN (FERAREENE REAEE
30F A L B B E ARG A K B30 3 A
FWARFEHEZRE) ZFO—BE8Z
BEROENEEBHEE —BERE-

19,370,0000% 22 8 1% 15 7 #918,360,0008% 1A
KHBHEE—RFFEB30%  SIN30%K%
A0%M D RINFELE BSEE —BERE=
BFEREB-

It 5N - 52 5518,360,0000% 22 B) i% 170 = & 57
BECARMIERE ANEBMNLAFNEZER
AEFEHETH -FEHEZHE A&
EEEZAIN T FREIARK
100,000,000 R —_ZE_FFEEIAR
#5150,000,0007T M A = F = —FEEE A
R #200,000,0007T ° WA BN E —FRiE
EEEFE AEEAREERNE ZFED B IER
7T IARB30% © WAEERE —FHHER
EHBEE AE—FHRMDETBEB -
ABFHEME  WEBRAZTHER A B
B - B AT B ZF FE100%H) 22BN A 17+
fii 5 [T Bk | Ko [ NRAK ] 45 575%3k
50%H) BB AR 17 ©
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

29.

30.

SHARE AWARD PLAN (continued)

On 25 May 2018, the Company communicated the share
awards with its employees by the Notice of Share Awards
Plan. By the Notice of Share Awards Plan, the Company and
the employees shared a full understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement. Hence 25 May 2018 is the
Grant Date.

The fair value of share awards was HK$0.97 per share, which
was the market price of the shares on 25 May 2018.

The Company assumed that the employees’ resignation rate
would be 1.23% and the employees” evaluation result would
be 95% of “Pass” and 5% of “Need improvements” and the
achievement possibility of net profit target would be 100%.

At the end of the reporting period, share award expense of
RMB3,567,000 was amortised under the Share Award Plan.

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders” total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.
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P fn BN A AL BERER0.97E T - BIR
MR_FB—-—\FAA_+THBAMNMHE-

ARRBRZEEFBEA1.23% miE 85T
HERAEIS% BB 5% [ FESHE | UK
40 A B IR SEAC AT BE1E A 100% ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES (continued)

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the Scheme are included in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Share award reserve

Details of the Company’s share award plan and the share
award granted under the plan are included in note 29 to the
financial statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium account are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

30. @B m

RECEERE
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o A B 1O B2 R BRI
95 T X O B 54 0 BB 01 0% 8 — AR B
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—RFEEE A RIEEEERMARBRRES
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BRERE
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F% 40 52 1B {5 488
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As at 31 December 2018 R —ZE—/\F+-A=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. &ffR&RERM =

CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions @ FEHFBEERS
There were no major non-cash transactions during the RERNMRFETEFEFRE
current financial year. 5 o

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing b RMETHELZEEEH
activities
2018 —E-N\F

Interest-bearing
bank borrowings

FFERITEE

RMB’000

AR®T R

At 1 January n—HA—H 595,161
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREZE (35,777)
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 559,384

2017 —T—tF

Interest-bearing

bank borrowings

FARSRITEE

RMB’000

AREFT

At 1 January n—H—H 631,903
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREZE (36,742)
At 31 December WN+=—B=+—H 595,161
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Notes to Financial Statements

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14
to the financial statements) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from two to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Less than one year —FR
In the second to fifth years FE_EFENLF

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

32. B

(@

HEFAE

ERHBEA
AEERBEEHELTHHERRKRSE
M (MBHRRME14)  ZFHEK
EENFHENTREEAF -HEFEMR
EMEK—RTARERL I NFRES
RETRARBEROTAEHEES
fEHFAEE

RZZ-N\F+_A=+—H &%
BIAR R B P AT AT Al AR = R
EEUTEFHANRRKERERYK

TR

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
+=B=+—H +—-_RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT T ARBEF T

600 660

- 600

600 1,260
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and warehouse properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from three to six years, and those for office
equipment are for terms of two years.

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were payable as

follows:

Less than one year —F RN

In the second to fifth years FE_EZFERF
After five years RF®

The Group leases certain properties located in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Italy as the Group's offices. The
leases run for an initial period of three to six years.

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

32.

KEHERE @

b)) EHREEA
AEBRELCEHEZHHAEET
MANEMEMNBEDE - ZEVERN
HELERNFEN T =ZF2F
M A ERENTHEERRBARE -

BT A T T P DL T EA
fi

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
A2 T —+F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR AREF T
2,255 2,192

1,461 3,291

480 660

4,196 6,143
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Notes to Financial Statements

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments in respect of the purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment outstanding as at 31 December
2018 but not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

Contracted for BET4

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors
(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group leased offices and manufacturing facilities
located in Mainland China from Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom Creative”) and
incurred operating lease charges of RMB500,000
(2017: RMB490,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in Kingdom Creative.
The lease expenses were made according to
published prices and conditions offered by the
lessor to its major customers.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

33. BEAREKIE
EURENE BERRBEAR-Z—N
F+ = A=+ — BRI HMEL RN BR
KA B ENERAENT

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—F
t=RA=+-B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBTT
146,431 36,283

34. BELFTRS
(@ ERAQAT—BZEZEFNQT
BETHNRS

(i)

REE_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—
HIEFE  ANEBANTISEA
¥R ERAR ([SEAZE])
8 A Z (R pA B K B 9 % A
ENEERE  TEEMEEH
EE&H A AR500,0007T (=
ZT—+F: AR#490,0007T) °
EHRR L LM A ©ZERIEMNE
Bz -REBEATRER LA
AMEESERFRENE A MH
B R IEHEL
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(@ Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors (continued)
(ii)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan
Solar Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,333,000
(2017: RMB2,433,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has
a controlling equity interest in this company.
The electricity purchase was made according to
published prices and conditions offered by the
supplier to its major customers.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group purchased raw materials from Zhejiang
Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk Co. Ltd. with an amount of
RMB452,000 (2017: RMB1,023,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a significant influence on this
company. The raw material purchase was made
according to published prices and conditions
offered by the supplier to its major customers.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

R IR B A& F
RERLRE A

Short term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of note (a) above

also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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34. BEFRS
(@ EBEBRAQAT—BEEEZHHLE
ETHRS @
iy REE=Z—NF+_A=1+—
HEFE AEBLUARK
2,333,0007T (ZF—+F: AR
#2,433,0007T) [A) 47T 28 ¢
RERRAFIES - (THAREE
B2 AR RS - BBE IR
BEhREtEERETERFREHE
B AMERE RIEHER -

iy BE_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
HIEFE  AEERMTHRET
MHABRARKESBEAA
R #452,000 (=& —t%F:
AR#1,023,0007T) K EH £ o
EHPLEHZ AR EERNY
27 o R RHREE TR IR FE S
MEFERFREENE QME
& RAGHFEL ©

b) FEETEEBEAESNHEE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBTIT
4,899 4,998

140 128

5,039 5,126

EEMERTRABMEME—FFBER
B 7% R M RES -

B RE ()8 B VBRI DT 32 5 TR AR BAE XX
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As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. REMNSENEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHRR SRR TENFE RN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: e
2018 —2-N\F

Financial assets

THEE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

1R 85 A A 51 AR
WeREE
RMB’000
AR®T R
Trade and notes receivables EUE 5 R A& R E & 295,115
Financial assets included in deposits and ST AR & K CH A fE R IR B
other receivables SREE 12,302
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 241,826
Pledged deposits EHEBFR 68,857
618,100
Financial liabilities EA =R
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised  through profit
cost or loss Total
RE A BRANEE
5 BR Y FTABRMN
cRas cRBE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®T R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t ERITIEE 559,384 - 559,384
Financial liabilities included in & A Al & {5 5B HY
other payables TRAE 73,147 - 73,147
Derivative financial instruments  $74 4 gl T & - 3,438 3,438
Trade and notes payables e E 5 RRRENRE 245,675 - 245,675
878,206 3,438 881,644

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ 3Z &R EMRA T
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERSENESMIT A @m
(continued)
2017 —E—+F
Financial assets SREE
Loans and
receivables
JE WK IE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade and notes receivables R E 5 BR 3 M B I = 310,215
Financial assets included in FE AR & & H A FE UL SR IE /Y
deposits and other receivables SREE 17,349
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEY 173,824
Pledged deposits EERER 50,314
551,702
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial
Financial liabilities
liabilities at fair value
at amortised  through profit
cost or loss Total
T SEA AR BAREE
IR #Y FFABER
TRAE TREAE FEET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T AREEFIT ARBEF T
Interest-bearing bank borrowings =t 2 R1T{EE 595,161 = 595,161
Financial liabilities included in 5+ A E fih & -t LB AY
other payables TRAE 64,622 - 64,622
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ &g T A = 7,002 7,002
Trade and notes payables e E 5 RRRENRE 189,783 - 189,783
849,566 7,002 856,568
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

36. TRMIANAABERAAREBEESE

Y
rEEemTANERASBERAAEE (K
FEeEEAABESEMEERIN W
T

Carrying amounts Fair values
BRE & 8 AREE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—g-\F ~—2-LF —B-NF —T LF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARETRT AR®BTR ARETT

Financial liabilities cREes
Derivative financial instruments EemTA

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. The carrying amount of the non-current interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group approximates to their fair
value because the loans have a floating interest rate.

3,438 7,002 3,438 7,002

HERENTE RELREFEY BK
BHERANERERE SHABRNMK AR
Ht R IE BB E - 2 T B
G BRITER BNESRANRENRE
B RABRE FFARMENRARERE
AreRaEnN A tEBEEERT SN
5 FTERHRZETIARHATIBHMK-
AEBERIEANHE B RITERBRNIRF A
Rt E o HEARmSBEEE QA EEMAE
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B 5 AR M &

As at 31 December 2018

36.

R-FE-NF+ZA=1+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swap, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2018, the market value of the derivative
asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable
to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in
counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial
instruments recognised at fair value.

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

36.

PRMIANAABERAAEBES
WEEw
UAEENELEAENTHIaEEES
MTEAAEBEFENERLIZERF - PEE
BEEENVKBEREZEZESER NS
WEBHE BB T ANEEE
WEFHEMRANEZEGAE - HERY
BKHEREILE EREE 2T Fim
HEBRE M SRR AT B R FEM 5

2%,

TREENBENAAREBERENRZS (&
HSBENERIN FETERRBRT AN
ELUN L

AEERZEH T (EERAAAEER
A SREE) ST ITASRIA TSR
TR (BREHEBSO R ERNIZHE)
TyER AR B B e (B b IR AR LU b (B R

DHE (RARERE) ZFELUAAT
ZHEARNTZABRBAE 8EREFH

B 5 B T - 5N B0 3 0 R B S
S BMESANNEESBREAREE
1R -

RZZB—NFE+ZA=+—H ETERZRE
MOTEBEMRRD MRS MITETAEHFT
BHORBRERENEEFEAR - BFHER
RN ESEIR AR BERANERTAY
BEATE-



36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Financial liabilities at fair value through RAABERNARS
profit or loss — foreign exchange THAR

forward contracts —NEEHEH

Financial liabilities at fair value through &AL EEF ABR
profit or loss — cross-currency swap TRAE

— A 4 ) =

3H)

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—/\F+=-A=+—H

36. TRMIANAABERAAREBEESE

MR )

DREBESRER

Tﬁﬁgmﬂiﬁlimﬂlﬂm NBESES
BRHE

BAARBEEFENESE:

Fair value measurement using

RANTHEBETHNARBEENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Z2-N\E  RERTE EATERE EXFUEE
+=A HWEE LIPN | BAE
=t-H 5-F F-E F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Trn ARBTRT AR%®Txn
414) - (414) -
(3,024) - (3,024) -

(3,438) -

(3,438) -
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss - foreign exchange TREE
forward contracts —NEEBHEH
Financial liabilities at fair value through &AL (BEF AB=H
profit or loss — cross-currency swap THARE
—AE e 5

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value

measurements (2017: Nil).
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36. TRMIANAABERAAREBEESE
MR )
AREESHREE @m

Fair value measurement using

RAATRBETNALEENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—T—tHF  RERWE EXTEE EATUER
+=A MR {E BAE BAE
=+—H FE £ZE £=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARET:R
(555) - (555) -
(6,447) - (6,447) -

(7,002) - (7,002) =

REBE_Z-—\F+_A=+—HILFE"
AREBEFEEE - ERFE_EzMEHMEE
B TEBAFE-EXAF-EEHLH(=F
—tFE)



37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various financial assets such
as trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

Bt 5 S A B

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

37. B¥EREEEEREEK

AEENETZEHMEE (TTETARKRMNE
BRABRRTER BNEIRALENE
B RAREREMENFE ZEERA
EEXEENRAASERHELEBMTE
T AEERELZETANSREE R
WEZEANERER BAR A RkE
fEWHIE BERERARRERAEE

AEBTETTEATARS T 20FEEY
EBA EEEEASELERERENR
RELHNEERE -

AEENSBMIAELENTERAKR SRR
% INERR - FERBERREBERR - EF
SR IHE T R E RS RBROBER -
AEEFBITETANS BRI N TSR
xMIFE2.4 -

MERER

AEBE TSN XSS E T RERNEEHR
FERRFFENRITEREH - ARELE
ERITES R T AP EN AR -
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in the
interest rates has no impact on the Group’s equity excluding
retained profits.

2018 —E—N\&E
RMB AR
RMB AR
2017 —E—tF
RMB ARE
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
EUR and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group, and expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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37. BRAREEEEREE @

TRETEMERMEHTER KNEEF
AR AT G A E 7 RSB A st F B BRE
(ERYHFBMNREENTE) - NREHYH
AEBEMEDE (REEMBRIN LT E -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in

interest rate

(decrease) in
profit before tax

A= BR Bt AT 5

LR (CFER) &/ GRD)
RMB’000

AR®T

(1%) 215

1% (215)

(1%) 177

1% (177)

S LB

SMERR RRINEEXRZBMEN SR T A
MAREBEIRKRESRERBNER - K
SEMIMNERE B TRKE SRR BT
PR M SRTTAE R SE AR R BRI RE B 5
B MAET BT RETINE  EAKEE
LN e o



37.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EUR, as described in note 21. It
is the Group’s policy to ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
a fixed rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will continue to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives). The change
in foreign currency exchange rate has no impact on the equity
excluding retained profits.

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-=2—N\H§

T-A=+—HLFE

37.

If RMB weakens against US$ AR N ETHESS
If RMB strengthens against US$ WMARBHETER

As at 31 December 2018 K= %

Bt 5 S A B

—NF+-HA=+—H

BHREREEEERBER &
SR BE ()
T EE21 Pl - NE BB BE] L IMERBIA
LT E S G SN TS LATE T BT A B A 8
EREAARBRESNRER EHEBE
HNERBS - REBMBRANEEZRHEB
RETEERE ASE NS R R E Hi
RERERFRERFIRAET KT - EEE
WGBS NE R G - WA E R A B
ST A (MINESREIA H) $ i E KIMNE
[E L ©

TRETEMAEMESTER  AEBER
AR AT BT KRB TTE RSB A 6
FHNHGRE (AREKEEREE (BIE
INESTET R )M AREBEES)) - INESER

BEias (REBRMBRIN LEZE-

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SPEEER RR B A %

EH (T i, GRa)

% RMB’000

AR%Tx

5 7,989
(5) (7,989)
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

Year ended 31 December 2018

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

200
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M R B (s)

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

SN B B 54 AT 5 )

EF(T) 8/ Cfd)

% RMB’000

ARET T

HE-_Z—+tF
TZA=T—HLEE

AR N ETESS 5 11,237
WMARBHETE R (5) (11,237)
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

INESEE = FR B A 2

ER (TR i OF)

% RMB’000

ARET

BE-Z-)/\F
TZA=t—HLEE

AR A BT 55 5 (3,455)
AR BUTER (5) 3,455




Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N#F+-H=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BXERREEEEZERBE@®

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

Year ended 31 December 2018

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

M R B (s
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SN B B 54 AT 5 )
EF(T) 8/ Cfd)
% RMB’000
ARET T
HE-_Z—+tF

TZA=1T—HILFE
MARYE X BT E S 5 5,659
WMARY HE TR (5) (5,659)
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
IPEEER FR B A 2
E#H (T CR2) /180
% RMB’000
ARET

BE-Z-)/\F

TZA=t—HLEE
AR N B THESS 5 (549)
MA R H B T (5) 549
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As at 31 December 2018 R —ZE—/\F+-A=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_Z—tF
TZA=+—RHILFE
If RMB weakens against HK$ MARYE KB TES
If RMB strengthens against HK$ WMARBHETER

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring

credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of customers is assessed through

credit verification procedures.
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37.

MEEEEEEEREER @

Fh s LB )
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit

rate before tax
HNEE [ifE 3= B B4 A1 Vs A
EF/(TH) #hn, CRd)

% RMB’000

ARBETT
5 1,022
(5) (1,022)

EERR

EERRIEREF I BARERTERER

TAXFEFANEAE MREMEBMBIEX

MER  AEENEERRTIZREEKE
AR TR K U SR 4 A Ko 3 & K L b Ui 5K
ERECHIRIEERR  UHFEERE

Bk - AEEHBEREESRETSEN

AR PETERERE-

EFEERBREASEEAEFEERRE
EEE’JEEE;EEZ RFRERETER TP
MEEEREBRERZBRRFETIMG
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. MBERBREEERREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December R-ZE-NFE+H=1+—HBREERER
2018 FhEE R
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRETERAEEEERRNEEERR
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, EaEERR ZEEBRRIEXREAHE
which is mainly based on past due information unless other B (RRIEEMEMEFNH TV ER ARSI
information is available without undue cost or effort, and NN ERS) ER=ZE—N\F+=_A=+—
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2018. The HOFEBERI B - B AEREER
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial E#E-
assets.
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@A
HHEE
5F =] 2HAEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
SRR E2M R SE3ME R AL 5%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARBTR AR¥TRT ARBTR AR®TR

Trade and notes receivables*  EUCE 5 8RN FE UL ZE 45 * - - - 295,840 295,840
Financial assets included in S A& N Ath B U TR IE )
deposits and other receivables & Fl & &
— Normal** —~FE" 12,302 - - - 12,302
Pledged deposits [RERENESA
— Not yet past due — 18 R 48 68,857 - - - 68,857
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED
— Not yet past due —WAREH 241,826 - - - 241,826
322,985 - - 295,840 618,825
@ For trade and notes receivables to which the Group applies & BAREERFEE T 0% T LR B ERE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on 5 BRA R W15 - P (e A [ 5 A
the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 19 to the financial BER LN T19 -
statements.
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits AL REMERKIEL 2 HEENE
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they EEZRARGHE®ERIEE] A8
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the G FER A KB AEE R K % BB E 5
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since ERBEZEEN DR eHEEMEREE
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial ERBEYER [RER] °

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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As at 31 December 2018

R-FE-NF+ZA=1+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. MEEBREEEREREEm
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERE #
Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017 R-FE—+F - A="1—HRE 5 EE
o
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which rEEEMeREE (BRERERREEE
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and pledged deposits, Y B ElREZR) A FHENOMEENR
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum SEERRBAENZFIANKASE
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy HRAEEEREREEERTNE=A
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. HEITRG ALBEKRERR - FEEF
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/ REBIRER /HFHER - ARAEEE
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit WE SRR EPEREZ DB BAKHE
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s VWESREEETER -
trade receivables are widely dispersed.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure BEAAEEREEWE ZERREREIERL
to credit risk arising from trade and notes receivables are EE R E — S BURN I I KM
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. 1932 5% -
Liquidity risk T ED 1 B
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBERBERARN SR A EDHB
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted R (REHORFTRNAFK)
payments, was as follows:
As at 31 December 2018
R=2-NE+=A=+-H
Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
RERX SRR ZZE+=fA -Z21% SREE )
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R
Interest-bearing bank loans HEBITER - 118,332 399,023 56,659 - 574,014
Trade and notes payables ENB IR RENRE 157,645 88,030 - - - 245,675
Other payables and accruals HitENHERERER 73,147 - - - - 73,147
230,792 206,362 399,023 56,659 - 892,836
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As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. MBERARBEEZERRBR @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEER K @)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBRBERARN SR A EDHB
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted N RBKART RN - ()
payments, was as follows: (continued)
As at 31 December 2017
RZ2—+&+-A=+-H
Less than 3t012 Ttob More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
B2k OR=ER ZE+ZfEA —Z0F SREF it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR¥TR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%Tx
Interest-bearing bank loans STRBRTER - 140,324 386,535 81,904 - 608,763
Trade and notes payables ENESEHFRENRE 115,400 62,361 12,022 - - 189,783
Other payables and accruals HEN AR ERER 64,622 - - - - 64,622
180,022 202,685 398,557 81,904 - 863,168
Capital management EXERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the Group’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, trade and notes payables, an
amount due to an associate and other payables and accruals,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

AEEEAEENEZ B EAREAEER
BREMES THFREOEARLLE L
XFREEBRRERFNERAEE-

AEEERHEERLERE  WARTLBEARIE
FEELRAR - BB NARERER K
SEARRMRERERSHRE  RRERRE
BASBETHRG REBEE_ZT—\F+=
A=+—8Bk-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HIt
FE AKEEVTEAEASENEEZE  BER
SR /E B o

AEBEFERAELERERER BELER
EREBFERABNBRINERFE A
BFEBETBRITER BUESERRK
RN R - A —RBE QR SR R E A
ENHRELEBRER BERE RS EE
W BRBEGRBIES ARLHEZ -HTR
SHMRNBELENT
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals (note 24)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt BRI
Total equity AR
Capital and net debt BEARREEFHE
Gearing ratio BELE
38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38.

HERITER

FERTE 5 BRI R B iR

HibfEt R ERIBIRE A
(Kiat24)

BB eRRESEEY

On 22 March 2019, the board of directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share
totalling approximately RMB33,103,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018, which is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting (note 11).

2018 Annual Report =& — \FE &£

BEREEEERBEE @

EXREE @)
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
t=A=+—-HB +Z=H=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARBEF T
559,384 595,161
245,675 189,783
73,147 64,622
(241,826) (173,824)
636,380 675,742
1,153,509 1,050,196
1,789,889 1,725,938
36% 39%
REHBRER

R-ZE—NAF=A-+-_H ARAEFE
EEMEE—ZT - N\F+-_A=1+—HILF
EIRESRETRER.OBIAMRIAKS &3

#) N R #33,103,0007T ° i

BARARRRRK

RRERERRBFARS L4t/E (K1) -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Dividends payable

Payroll payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

FRBEE
R B ARWRE

REBEE

JE U Hft B8 X Bl R IR
Hofth & W 3R IR
B
RAekREEED

MEBERE

RBAE
FAERITEE
FEAT P 8 2 )R IR
FETRLR
% e

mEBERRE
REBEEFE

BEERER
REBEE

BEFE
R
BEBITEA
& f (PaE)

R AR

As at 31 December 2018 R _-ZE—/F+_-H=+—H

XA B B AR R R
BEAR QRN RS BROT AR KA E R
R
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
373,362 373,362
290,381 283,159
2,522 1,473
172 -
404 1,085
293,479 285,717
11,391 26,331
6,921 4,746
1 _
- 442
18,313 31,519
275,166 254,198
648,528 627,560
648,528 627,560
6,329 6,329
642,199 621,231
648,528 627,560
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As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE—N#F+=ZHA=+—AH

39.

40.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 39. XD BMBARRE @0

COMPANY (continued)

Note: Mt

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRBFE AT :

Company Vi N/NET

Share
Share  Contributed Treasury option Retained

premium surplus shares reserve profits Total

Rt EE BAER Bk BRERE RE&EF a3t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥FTR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%Tx

At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tF—H-H 270,955 370,213 - 2,012 - 643,180

Profit for the year ERE - - - - 25,526* 25,526

Final 2016 dividend declared  BER=Z—NERHRS (2,636) = = = (25,526) (28,162)

Share repurchased el = (19,508) - - (19,508)

Equity-settled share option ~ bAEm &S FER ERH

arrangements - - 195 - 195
At31 December 2017 and ~ R=F—tE+-A=1+—H

1 January 2018 RZZ-\¥-A-H 268,319 370,213 (19,508) 2,207 - 621,231

Profit for the year EREH - - - 31,495 31,495

Final 2017 dividend declared B ER-Z—~FEREME - - - (10,527) (10,527)

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\$+ZA=1+—-H 268,319 370,213 (19,508) 2,207 20,968 642,199

Contributed surplus BB

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the BABRBRENEHBREESERONAAEE

shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over AR R ARG ETOHRMEEREE-

the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

therefor.

e Profit for the year of 2018 includes dividends from subsidiaries @ ZE-NEFER IR ENE L 7l
attributable to previous years’ profits of RMB33,438,000 (2017: 15 B 1T F 20w FI i iR B A R #33,438,000
RMB27,122,000) L (=F—+%F: AR#¥27,122,0007C)

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ~ 40. #tE&#f8 i ®R*K

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2019.
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